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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors take pleasure in presenting the Eighth Annual Report of your Company along with the Audited Financial 
Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024. 

Review of operations - Financial Performance
                                 (Rs. in Crore)

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Total Income 367.33 190.83

Less: Total expenses 274.63 156.13

92.70 34.70

Less: Tax Expenses 23.48 8.95

69.22 25.75

Add: Other Comprehensive Income (0.20) (0.13)

Total Comprehensive Income 69.02 25.62

Less: Transfer to Reserves as per Section 45-IC of the RBI Act 13.80 5.12

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 55.22 20.50

March 31, 2024 compared to Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023.

Business Highlights
• The Assets Under Management (AUM) as at March 31, 2024 were Rs. 2,878.46 Crore as against AUM of Rs. 1,690.51 Crore as 

at March 31, 2023.

• During the year under review the Company had funded 4,867 customers as against the 3,762 Customers in FY 2022-23 which 

• The net worth of the Company stood at Rs. 987.36 Crore as on March 31, 2024 as compared to Rs. 455.25 Crore as on March 
31, 2023.

Dividend
During the year under review the Board has not declared any interim dividend. In order to preserve capital and to utilize the funds 
for the Company’s growth your Directors do not recommend Dividend for the Financial Year under review.

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Pro�t to be carried forward to reserves 
Your Directors propose to transfer Rs. 13.80  Crore as per Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 to the Special 
Reserve of the Company for the year ended on March 31, 2024.

Deposits  
The Company did not hold any public deposits at the beginning of the year nor has it accepted any public deposits during the year 
under review.

Share Capital
• Authorized share capital

 During the year under review your Company’s existing Authorized Share Capital of the Company of Rs. 2008,00,00,000 (Rupees 
Two Thousand and Eight Crores Only) divided into 200,00,00,000 (Two hundred Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) 

to 165,00,00,000 (One Hundred and Sixty Five Crores) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each and 35,80,00,000 (Thirty 
Five Crores Eighty Lakhs) Preference Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each. 
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• Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital

 The Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital of your Company as on March 31, 2024 is Rs. 4,90,12,52,950/- consisting of 
37,69,91,150 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each being the face value and  11,31,34,145 Series A Compulsorily Convertible 
Preference Share of Rs. 10/- each being the face value.

• Equity Share Capital

 During the year under review, the Company had issued and allotted  25,015 (Twenty Five Thousand Fifteen) Equity Shares 
where Rs. 10/- each (at an issue price of Rs.41.53/- where Rs. 10/- being the face value and Rs 31.53/- being premium) 
aggregating to Rs. 10,38,873/- on private placement basis. 15 Equity Shares and 25,000 Equity Shares were allotted on 19th 
July, 2023 and 20th December, 2023 respectively.

 Further, during the year under review the Company allotted 7,00,000 Equity shares pursuant to the exercise of Options by 
employees under Employee Stock Option Scheme 2017. 

• 

 During the year under review, the Company had issued and allotted 11,31,34,145 Series A Compulsorily Convertible 
Preference Share in two tranches at an issue price of Rs. 41.53/- where Rs. 10/- being the face value and Rs. 31.53/- being 
premium on private placement basis; (i) 6,86,25,074 Series A Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share being Tranche I and 
(ii) 4,45,09,071 Series A Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share being Tranche II, aggregating to Rs. 4,69,84,61,042/- were 
allotted on 19th July, 2023 and 20th December, 2023 respectively.

Borrowings

Company continued to borrow funds inter-alia by issue of Commercial Papers and Non-Convertible Debentures, Credit facilities 
inter-alia from banks and financial institutions. Details in this regard are more particularly mentioned in the Audited Financial 
Statements.

Credit Rating
The following ratings have been assigned on the Facilities availed by the Company

Sr. No. Facility Rating Assigned

1 Non – Convertible Debentures CARE A+;Stable , CRISIL A+/Stable

2 Principal Protected Market Linked Debentures CRISIL PPMLD A+/Stable

3 Commercial Paper (Short Term Facility) CARE A1+

4 Long Term Facility CARE A+; Stable

CRISIL A+/Stable

Board of Directors
Your Board of Directors have approved Internal Guidelines on Corporate governance laying a strong emphasis on transparency, 
accountability and in accordance with the Master Direction-Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale Based 
Regulation) Directions, 2023. The composition of your Board is 11(Eleven) Directors comprising of 4 (four) Non-Executive Non-
Independent Directors 3(three) Nominee Non-Executive Non Independent Directors, 3 (three) Independent Directors and 1 (one) 
Executive Managing Director. 

The Board comprises of an adequate number of Directors with diverse experience and skills, such that it best serves the governance 
and strategic needs of the Company. The below table provides the details of the Company’s composition of the Board of Directors 
in accordance with Master Direction-Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 
2023:

Sr.  
no.

Capacity DIN
other 

Director 
ships

Remuneration  
Equity 
shares  

held
Salary & other 
compensation

Sitting Fee Commission

1. Mr. Manish Chokhani
(8.10.2022)

Independent
Chairman

00204011 6 – 5,60,000 – –

2. Mr. Neeraj Saxena
(3.02.2023)

Executive 07951705 0 2,49,42,100 – – 83,54,078 

3. Mr. Akash Bhanshali
(2.01.2018)

Non-Executive 00265600 4 – – – –

4. Mr. Gautam Jain 
(4.10.2016)

Non-Executive 00296575 9 – – – –
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Sr.  
no.

Capacity DIN
other 

Director 
ships

Remuneration  
Equity 
shares  

held
Salary & other 
compensation

Sitting Fee Commission

5. Mr. Ashwin Jain 
(4.10.2016)

Non-Executive 00173983 7 – – – –

6. Mr. Vivek Saraogi
(20.04.2018)

Non-Executive 00221419 4 – – – –

7. Mr. C. Ilango
(29.05.2020)

Independent 03498879 2 – 5,80,000 – –

8. Mr. Deo Tripathi 
(3.02.2023)

Independent 07153794 3 – 6,60,000 – –

9 Mr. Akhil Awasthi 
(19.07.2023)

Nominee 00148350 1 – – – –

10 Ms. Lavanya Ashok 
(20.12.2023)

Nominee 03453279 1 – – – –

11 Mr. Perumal Srinivasan 
(20.12.2023)

Nominee 00365025 7 – – – –

with the Company apart from sitting fees for attending Board / Committee Meetings paid to Independent Directors. 

The below table indicates the details of change in the composition of your Board of Directors during the current and previous 

Sr.  
No.

Capacity

1. Mr. Akhil Awasthi Non-Executive (Nominee) Director Appointment 19-07-2023

2. Ms. Lavanya Ashok Non-Executive (Nominee) Director Appointment 20-12-2023

3. Mr. Perumal Srinivasan Non-Executive (Nominee) Director Appointment 20-12-2023

Pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors approved the 
appointment of Mr. Akhil Awasthi as an Additional Director on July 19, 2023. His appointment was regularized as a Nominee 
Director in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 19th July, 2023. 

Pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors approved the 
appointment of Ms. Lavanya Ashok and Mr. Perumal Srinivasan as an Additional Director on 20th December, 2023. Their 
appointment was regularized as a Nominee Director in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 20th December, 2023. 

Pursuant to the Internal Corporate Governance Policy covering the ‘Fit and Proper’ Policy of the Company and the RBI Directions 
the Company has received the ‘Fit and Proper’ declaration from the above-mentioned Directors of the Company for the review and 
consideration of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Inter-se Relationship amongst Directors 
None of the Directors is related to any other Director on the Board nor is related to the other Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company in terms of the provisions of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder.

As the Company is a Private Limited Company, the retirement by rotation of Directors is not applicable.

Key Managerial Personnel
As on March 31, 2024, your Company’s Key Managerial Personnel comprises of the following:

Designation

Mr. Neeraj Saxena

Mr. Harsha Saksena

Ms. Deepika Thakur Chauhan

Ms. Deepika Thakur Chauhan who was appointed as Company Secretary and Head Legal on 5th September, 2022 was redesignated 

on 25th September, 2023. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Independent Directors 

with the criteria of independence laid under the applicable provisions of the Act and / or under applicable regulations and the same 
have been taken on record by the Board of Directors. 

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite qualifications, experience and 
expertise and that they hold the highest standards of integrity. In terms of Section 150 of the Act read with the Companies 

with the data bank of Independent Directors created and maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, Manesar.

There are no pecuniary transactions between the Directors and the Company except for the sitting fees being paid to the 
Independent Directors for attending the meetings of the Board and its Committee(s).

A separate meeting of the Independent Directors of your Company was held on 2nd May, 2023. All the Independent Directors of the 
Company attended the meeting.

Resignation by Independent Directors 
There was no resignation tendered by any of the Independent Directors before expiry of their term. 

Annual Evaluation of Board
The Board carried out a formal annual evaluation of its own performance and that of its committees and individual Directors. 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 a structured questionnaire under the approval of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee taking into consideration various aspects of the Board's functioning, composition of the Board and its 
Committees, their role and functions, periodicity of meeting and compliance with coverage and review functions and governance 
was prepared. Similarly, a structured questionnaire approved by Nomination & Remuneration Committee is in place to evaluate 

of functions, ability to function as a team. The questionnaire cum rating sheet were circulated to the Board Members for seeking 
feedback with regards to the performance of the Board, Committees, Chairman and individual directors. 

Form the individual ratings received from the Directors, a report on summary of ratings in respect of performance evaluation of 
(i) the Board (ii) Committees (iii) Chairman and (iv) individual Directors was arrived at. The consolidated report was noted and 
discussed by the Board at their meeting held on 7th May, 2024. 

The performance evaluation of the Non -Independent Directors was also carried out by the Independent Directors, separately at 
their meeting. The feedback of the Independent Directors on their review of the performance of Non-Independent Directors and 
the Board as a whole, the performance of the Chairman of the Company and the assessment of the quality, quantity and timeliness 

out the performance evaluation. 

Your Directors express their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

Meetings of the Board
The Board of Directors of your Company met 9 times during the Financial Year under review, that is on May 2, 2023, June 13, 
2023, June 21, 2023, July 19,2023, August 2, 2023, November 3, 2023, December 11, 2023, December 20, 2023 and January 30, 
2024. The maximum gap between two Board Meetings did not exceed 120 (One Hundred and Twenty) days. The attendance of the 
Directors was as under:

Sr. No.
 

during the year
 

attended during the year

1. Mr. Manish Chokhani 9 8

2. Mr. C. Ilango 9 9

3 Mr. Vivek Saraogi 9 8

4. Mr. Akash Bhanshali 9 5

5. Mr. Gautam Jain 9 9

6. Mr. Deo Shankar Tripathi 9 9

7. Mr. Ashwin Jain 9 6

8. Mr. Akhil Awasthi 5 5

9. Ms. Lavanya Ashok 1 1

10. Mr. Perumal Srinivasan 1 1

11. Mr. Neeraj Saxena 9 9

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Committees of the Board

India and the Company’s internal corporate governance requirements, the Board has constituted following Committees to focus on 

• Audit Committee

• Nomination and Remuneration Committee

• Executive Committee

• Asset Liability Management Committee

• Risk Management Committee

• IT Strategy Committee

• Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

• Borrowing Committee

• Credit Committee

• CIC Committee 

During the Financial Year under review, the following Committees were reconstituted: 

• Audit Committee

• Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

• Risk Management Committee

• Audit Committee

 The Board reviews the working of the Committee from time to time to bring about greater effectiveness in order to comply 
with the various requirements under the Act, SEBI Regulations and RBI Regulations. The terms of reference of the Committee 
are in accordance with the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations and RBI Regulations. The major terms of reference of Audit Committee 

related parties.

 Mr. C Ilango is the Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Manish Chokhani, Mr. Gautam Jain, Mr. Deo Shankar Tripathi and  
Mr. Akhil Awasthi are the members of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee was reconstituted by way of inducting  
Mr. Akhil Awasthi as a Member of the Audit Committee.   

 The Audit Committee met Four (4) times during the Financial Year under review being May 2, 2023, August 2, 2023, November 
3, 2023 and January 30, 2024. The Board accepted all the recommendations of the Audit Committee. The below table provides 
the details of the Audit Committee in accordance with Master Direction-Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial 
Company – Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023:

Sr. 
No. 

Committee 
since 

Capacity

 

held in the 
CompanyHeld Attended

1. Mr. C. Ilango 29.05.2020 Independent - Chairman 4 4 None

2. Mr. Manish Chokhani 8.10.2022 Independent - Member 4 3 None

3. Mr. Gautam Jain 26.10.2017 Non-Executive - Member 4 3 None

4. Mr. Deo Shankar Tripathi 3.02.2023 Independent - Member 4 4 None

5. Mr. Akhil Awasthi* 19.07.2023 Nominee - Member 3 3 None

 *Mr. Akhil Awasthi was appointed as Non-Executive (Nominee) Director with effect from July 19,2023. The Committee was  
re-constituted to induct Mr. Akhil Awasthi as the Member of the Committee w.e.f. July 19, 2023.

• Nomination and Remuneration Committee

 The major terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee inter alia, includes formulation of criteria for 

to the Board and Senior Management and specifying the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its 
Committees, Chairperson and individual directors, recommendation of remuneration policy for directors, key managerial 
personnel and other employees, formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Board, 
etc. 

 Mr. Vivek Saraogi is the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Mr. Manish Chokhani, Mr. C Ilango, 
Mr, Deo Shankar Tripathi, Mr. Gautam Jain and Mr. Akhil Awasthi are the members of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was reconstituted by way of inducting Mr. Akhil Awasthi as a 
Member of the Audit Committee.  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT



23

  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met Four (4) times during the Financial Year under review being May 2, 2023, 
July 19, 2023, November 3, 2023 and December 20, 2023. The Board accepted all the recommendations of NRC. The below 
table provides the details of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in accordance with Master Direction-Reserve Bank 
of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023:

Sr. 
No. 

Committee 
since

Capacity

 

held in the 
CompanyHeld Attended

1. Mr. Vivek Saraogi 25.07.2018 Non-Executive-Chairman 4 3 None

2. Mr. Manish Chokhani 8.10.2022 Independent-Member 4 3 None

3. Mr. C Ilango 29.05.2020 Independent-Member 4 4 None

4. Mr. Gautam Jain 26.10.2017 Non-Executive- Member 4 4 None

5. Mr. Deo Shankar Tripathi 3.02.2023 Independent - Member 4 4 None

6. Mr. Akhil Awasthi* 19.07.2023 Nominee-Member 2 2 None

 *Mr. Akhil Awasthi was appointed as an Nominee Director with effect from July 19,2023. The Committee was therefore  
re-constituted to induct Mr. Akhil Awasthi as the Member of the Committee w.e.f. July 19, 2023.

• Executive Committee 

 The Executive Committee is authorized by the Board to review and approve the operational activities and provide 
administrative convenience. The terms of reference of the Executive Committee inter alia, include authorizing opening of 
account with Banks / asset management companies, authorize execution of deeds and documents for any borrowings by the 

Information System Policy.

 Mr. Gautam Jain, Non-Executive Director is the Chairman of the Committee and Mr. Neeraj Saxena, Managing Director and 

 The Executive committee met seven (7) times during the Financial Year under review being May 2, 2023, June 13, 2023, 
August 2, 2023 September 13, 2023, November 2, 2023 December 12, 2023 and January 30,2024. The Board accepted all the 
recommendation of Executive committee. The below table provides the details of the Executive Committee in accordance with 
with Master Direction-Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023:

Sr. 
No. Member Committee 

since
Capacity

 

the Company
Held Attended

1. Mr. Gautam Jain 25.07.2018 Non-Executive - Chairman 7 7 None

2. Mr. Neeraj Saxena 3.02.2023 Executive - Member 7 7 83,54,078  
Equity Shares

• Asset Liability Management Committee 

 The Asset Liability Management Committee was constituted in accordance with the RBI directives and to monitor the asset 
liability mismatches to ensure that there are no imbalances or excessive concentrations on either side of the balance sheet 
and identify ALM risks, measure their impact and monitor the management of fundamental risks to reduce the likelihood of 
unwelcome surprises.

Liability Management Committee. 

 The Asset Liability Management Committee met Five (5) times during the Financial Year under review being May 2, 2023, 
August 2, 2023, November 3, 2023, January 30, 2024 and February 26, 2024. The Board accepted all the recommendations of 
Asset Liability Management Committee. The below table provides the details of the Asset Liability Management Committee 
in accordance with with Master Direction-Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale Based Regulation) 
Directions, 2023:

Sr. 
No. Member Committee 

since
Capacity

 

the Company
Held Attended

1. Mr. Neeraj Saxena 3.02.2023 Executive-Chairman 5 5 83,54,078  
Equity Shares

2. Mr. Harsha Saksena 17.02.2021 5 5 None

3. Ms. Namita Raja 19.04.2019 Chief- Operations, Policy and 
Control - Member

5 4 None
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• Risk Management Committee 

 The major terms of reference of the Committee, inter alia, include, managing the integrated risk, to lay down procedures to 
inform the Board about risk assessment and minimisation procedures in the Company and to frame, implement, monitor the 
risk management plan for the Company. The Committee and the Board periodically review the Company’s risk assessment and 

 Mr. Gautam Jain, Director is the Chairman of the Committee and Mr. Manish Chokhani, Independent Director, Mr. Deo Shankar 
Tripathi, Independent Director, Mr. Akhil Awasthi, Nominee Director, Mr. Neeraj Saxena, Managing Director & Chief Executive 

reconstituted by way of inducting Mr. Akhil Awasthi as a Member of the Risk Management Committee.   

 The Risk Management Committee met  Five (5) times during the Financial Year under review being May 2, 2023, July 19, 2023 
August 2, 2023, November 3, 2023 and January 30, 2024. The Board accepted all the recommendations of Risk Management 
Committee. The below table provides the details of the Risk Management Committee in accordance with Master Direction - 
Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023:

Sr. 
No. Member Committee 

since
Capacity

 
held in the 
CompanyHeld Attended

1. Mr. Gautam Jain 5.08.2020 Non-Executive Chairman 5 4 None

2. Mr. Manish Chokhani 8.10.2022 Independent- Member 5 4 None

3. Mr. Neeraj Saxena 3.02.2023 Executive- Member 5 5 83,54,078  
Equity Shares

4. Mr. Deo Shankar Tripathi 3.02.2023 Independent - Member 5 5 None

5. Mr. Harsha Saksena 17.02.2021 5 5 None

6. Mr. Akhil Awasthi* 19.07.2023 Nominee- Member 3 3 None

7. Ms. Namita Raja 17.10.2019 Chief- Operations, Policy and 
Control -Member

5 4 None

8. Mr. Kumar Lalwani 8.10.2022 5 5 None

 The Committee was re-constituted to induct Mr. Akhil Awasthi as the Member of the Committee w.e.f. July 19, 2023.

• IT Strategy Committee

 The major terms of reference of IT Strategy Committee, inter alia, includes approving IT strategy and policy documents, to 
ensure that management has an effective strategic planning process and to ensure that IT strategy is aligned with business 
strategy.

 Mr. C Ilango, Independent Director is the Chairman of the Committee and Mr. Neeraj Saxena, Managing Director & Chief 

 The IT Strategy Committee met two (2) times during the Financial Year under review being August 2, 2023 and January 30, 
2024. The Board accepted all the recommendations of IT Strategy Committee. The below table provides the details of the IT 
Strategy Committee in accordance with Master Direction-Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale 
Based Regulation) Directions, 2023:

Sr. 
No. Member Committee 

since
Capacity

 
held in the 
CompanyHeld Attended

1. Mr. C Ilango 8.06.2020 Independent- Chairman 2 2 None

2. Mr. Neeraj Saxena 3.02.2023 Executive- Member 2 2 83,54,078 
Equity Shares

3. Mr. Harsha Saksena 12.05.2021 2 2 None

4. Mr. Kumar Lalwani 8.10.2022 2 2 None

• Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

policy is  in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company; and to overview the projects or programs which are 
proposed to be undertaken by the Company in the coming years.

 Mr. Manish Chokhani, Independent Director is the Chairman of the Committee and Mr. Gautam Jain, Director, Mr. Deo Shankar 
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 The CSR Committee met one (1) time during the Financial Year under review being May 2, 2023. The below table provides the 
details of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in accordance with Master Direction-Reserve Bank of India (Non-
Banking Financial Company – Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023:

Sr. 
No. Member Committee 

since
Capacity

 
held in the 
CompanyHeld Attended

1. Mr. Manish Chokhani 8.10.2022 Independent-Chairman 1 1 None

2. Mr. Gautam Jain 5.08.2020 Non-Executive Member 1 1 None

3. Mr. Neeraj Saxena 3.02.2023 Executive Member 1 1 83,54,078 
Equity Shares

4. Mr. Deo Shankar Tripathi 3.02.2023 Independent- Director 1 1 None

• Borrowing Committee

 The terms of reference of Borrowing Committee, inter alia, includes exercising all powers to borrow money within limits 

costs including but not limited for the purpose of creating, offering, issuing and allotting the Debentures on behalf of the 
Company and to determine the terms and conditions of the issue of the Debentures of each series/ tranche for the purpose of 
issuance of the Debentures. 

 Mr. Akash Bhanshali, Director is the Chairman of the Committee and Mr. Vivek Saraogi and Mr. Neeraj Saxena, Managing 

 The Borrowing Committee met Ten (10) times during the Financial Year under review being May 11, 2023, June 8, 2023, 
August 9, 2023, October 26, 2023, November 3, 2023, November 29, 2023, December 19, 2023, December 30, 2023, February 
12, 2024 and March 28, 2024. The below table provides the details of the Borrowing Committee in accordance with Master 
Direction-Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023:

Sr. 
No. Member 

Committee 
since

Capacity  

held in the 
CompanyHeld Attended

1. Mr. Akash Bhanshali 8.06.2020 Non-Executive -Chairman 10 10 None

2. Mr. Neeraj Saxena 8.06.2020 Executive-Member 10 10 83,54,078 
Equity Shares

3. Mr. Vivek Saraogi 2.08.2022 Non-Executive-Member 10 4 None

• Remuneration Policy 

 The Company has a Board approved Remuneration Policy laying down the standards to:

 (a) Establish the remuneration system driven by the strategic objectives of the Company

 (b) Establish remuneration practices strengthened by the principles of meritocracy and fairness.

 (c) Ensure the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks. 

 The standards serve as the guidelines for the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board to function. It also 
provides the guidance to the Company’s management and Human Resources Department to follow in its recruitment process. 

 The Remuneration Policy has been displayed on the website of the Company. The link for the same is https://www.auxilo.com/
policy.

 Further in accordance with para 99 and Annexure XXIV of Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale 
Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 Company has put in place a Board approved Compensation Policy. The policy interalia aims 
to ensure that the remuneration payable to Key Managerial Personnels and Senior Management Personnel are aligned with 
the risk exposure to the role.  

• Risk Management Policy

 The Company has a Board approved Risk Management Policy. The risks covered under the scope of policy are Credit risk, 
Market risk and Operational risk. Risk Management Policy framework is formulated to ensure that there is a formal process for 

• Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

 The Board of the Company has Company approved Corporate Social Responsibility Policy laying down the standards to:

 (a) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy to indicate the corporate social 
responsibility activities to be undertaken by the Company 
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 (b) Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on such activities 

 (c) Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time 

 During the year under review, the Company spent an amount of Rs. 42,00,078/- towards the identified CSR activities. The 
Annual report on CSR activities is enclosed as Annexure A and forms part of this report. 

Statutory Auditors
M/s. Nangia and Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number: 002391C/N500069) were appointed as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company for a period of 3 years on June 28, 2022 at the Annual General Meeting held on June 28, 2022. M/s. Nangia 
and Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants continue to be the Statutory Auditors of the Company. 

Internal Audit and Information System Audit
Your Board of Directors appointed M/s. ANSA & Associates LLP as the Internal  Auditors of the Company for Financial Year  
2023-24. The Internal Audit scope covered the scope of the Information System Audit as prescribed under Master Direction 
-Information Technology Framework for NBFCs. 

The Internal Audit reports were reviewed by the Audit Committee on half yearly basis.

Secretarial Auditors
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014, the Company appointed M/s Mehta and Mehta, Practicing Company Secretaries to conduct the secretarial audit for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2024. 

Explanation or Comments by the Board on every qualification, reservation or adverse remarks or 
disclaimers made
Auditors’ Report 
the Company in their audit report for the Financial Year 2023-24. 

The report of the Statutory Auditors is annexed to this Report. 

Secretarial Audit Report - There were no qualifications, reservation or adverse comments made by the Secretarial Auditor of 
the Company in their audit report for the Financial Year 2023-24. The Secretarial Audit report for the Financial Year 2023-24 is 
enclosed as Annexure B to this Report

Details of Fraud reported by Statutory Auditors
During the Financial Year under review, the Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported any instance of fraud as 
prescribed under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Maintenance of Cost Records
During the Financial Year under review, the Company was not required to maintain the Cost records, pursuant to Section 148(1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 for the services rendered. Hence, 
the disclosure required under Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

Employee Stock Options
The Company has Employee Stock Option Plan 2017 ("ESOP 2017" or "the Scheme”) with a pool of 1,20,00,000 Employee Stock 
Options convertible into equivalent number of equity shares of face value of Rs.10 each. The exercise price under the scheme is the 
fair market value as determined by the valuer appointed by the Board at the time of grant. The Scheme as approved authorizes the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee to administer the same. 

Options granted for the year NIL

Options vested for the year 33,93,500

The total number of shares arising as a result  
of exercise of option (during FY 2023-24)

7,00,000

Options lapsed (during FY 2023-24) 25,000

Exercise price Exercise price is the ‘Fair Market Value’ of the shares of the Company as 
determined by an independent valuer appointed by the Company for each grant

Variation of terms of options The terms of options has not been varied
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Money realized by exercise of options  
(during FY 2023-24)

Rs. 70,00,000/- ( excluding taxes)

Total number of options in force* 94,89,000 

* ESOPs in force are the options granted to eligible employees that are either vested or unvested options as on 31st March, 2024. 

i. Key Managerial Personnel 

Sr. No

NIL NIL

granted during that year

Sr. No Employee Name

NIL NIL

(excluding outstanding warrants and conversion) of the Company at the time of grant

Sr. No Employee Name

NIL NIL

Extract of the Annual Return
The Annual Return for Financial Year 2023-24 as required under Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been placed on the 
website of the Company. The following is web link for the same: https://www.auxilo.com/investor-relations/

Companies which have become or ceased to become Subsidiaries/Joint Venture/ Associate Company

shareholding in your Company. Your Company continues to be the associate Company of M/s Balrampur Chini Mills Limited and  

Act, 2013.   

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
The Company being a Non-Banking Financial Company registered with the Reserve Bank of India has the exemption from the 
provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder for the purpose of grant of loans. The Company in 
the ordinary course of business grants Loans for higher education to the students and loans to the Educational institutions in the 

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties
Your Company has not entered into any contract or arrangement with related parties referred under the provisions of Section 188 
of the Companies Act, 2013, during the Financial Year 2023-24 requiring disclosure in Form No. AOC 2, as prescribed under Rule 

statements. The Company’s Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions is available on the Company’s website. The following 
is web link for the same: https://www.auxilo.com/policy.

Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy
The Company has established a vigil mechanism to provide appropriate avenues to the Directors and employees to bring to the 
attention of the Management, their genuine concerns about behavior of employees, if any, or report about the unethical behavior 
by using the mechanism provided in the Whistle Blower Policy. During the Financial Year 2023-24, no cases under this mechanism 
were reported to the Company.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
The Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, your 
Directors state that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial Year 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT



28

the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems 
were adequate and operating effectively.

(f) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such internal controls were 
adequate and operating effectively. 

Internal Financial Control Systems and their Adequacy
The Company has put in place adequate policies and procedures to ensure that the system of internal financial control is 
commensurate with the size and nature of Company’s business. These system provide a reasonable assurance in respect of 

and detection of frauds, accuracy and completeness of accounting records and ensuring compliance with corporate policies. 

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Woman at Workplace
The Board had formulated, adopted and approved a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at work place in line with the 
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. All employees 
are covered under the policy. The Company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) under the provision of the said 
act. No complaint was received from any employee during the Financial Year 2023-24 and hence no complaint is outstanding as on 
March 31, 2024 for redressal.

Material Changes and commitments, if any, affecting the Financial position after the Balance Sheet 
date
There have been no material changes or commitments which affect the financial position of the Company which have occurred 

Regulatory Updates  

The NBFCs based on their size, activity and perceived riskiness have been divided into four layers viz., NBFC - Base Layer, (NBFC-BL), 
NBFC - Middle Layer (NBFC-ML) NBFC - Upper Layer (NBFC-UL) and NBFC- Top Layer (NBFC-TL). The base layer shall include non-
deposit taking NBFCs, with asset size less than Rs. 1000 Crore. The middle layer shall include all deposit taking NBFCs, irrespective 
of asset size, non-deposit taking NBFCs with an asset size of  Rs. 1000 Crore or more, as well as housing finance companies, 

companies. 

Your Company with a total asset size of above Rs. 1000 Crore shall be NBFC-Middle Layer. The Company as per the Master 

Important Non-Deposit taking Company. 

Secretarial Standards/Regulatory Guidelines
Your Company has complied with the applicable provisions of Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India and the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking 
Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 prescribed by RBI regarding accounting standards, 

There was no change in nature of business of your Company during the Financial Year 2023-24. 

status and the Company’s operation in future. 

Details of General Board Meetings 
During the Financial year under review, the Company had held One (1) Annual General Meeting and Four (4) Extra Ordinary General 
Meetings. The details are as under:

Sr. 
no

 Date and Place Special resolutions passed

1. Annual General Meeting June 28, 2023 through video 
conferencing deemed to be held at the 

Issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures 
for an amount not exceeding Rs. 750 
Crore
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Sr. 
no

 Date and Place Special resolutions passed

2. Extra-Ordinary General Meeting June 22, 2023 through video 
conferencing deemed to be held at the 

i)  Issuance of Compulsorily Convertible 
Preference Shares (“CCPS”) and 
Equity Shares on private placement

Share Capital and alteration in the 
Memorandum of Association of the 
Company

3. Extra-Ordinary General Meeting July 19, 2023 through video conferencing 

of the company

i)   Adoption of the Altered Article of 
Association of the Company

ii)  Approve the Amendment of 
Object Clause of the Company 
and Alteration of Memorandum of 
Association

4. Extra-Ordinary General Meeting December 11, 2023 through video 
conferencing deemed to be held at the 

Issuance of Compulsorily Convertible 
Preference Shares (“CCPS”) and Equity 
Shares on private placement 

5. Extra-Ordinary General Meeting December 20, 2023 through video 
conferencing deemed to be held at the 

Adoption of the Altered Article of 
Association of the Company

Details of Non-compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
Your Company has complied with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013, including with respect to compliance with accounting 
and secretarial standards and there being no default in this connection. 

Details of Penalties and Strictures
There were no penalties or stricture imposed on the Company by the Reserve Bank or any other statutory authority.

Transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)
Since there was no amount lying w.r.t. unpaid / unclaimed Dividend and Shares, the provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules thereunder does not apply. Further, there was no amount due to be transferred to IEPF in respect to secured 
redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures and interest thereon by the Company.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Annual Report.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
Since, the Company does not carry any manufacturing activities, particulars to be disclosed with respect to conservation of energy 
and technology absorption under section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Companies Accounts Rules, 2014 are not applicable

The information on ,foreign exchange earnings and outgo pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the 
Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given in herein. Your Company’s website address is: https://www.auxilo.com/

Foreign Exchange Earnings : Nil

Foreign Exchange Outgo : Nil

Disclosure in respect of status of application or proceeding pending under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code
During the year under review, no application was made, or any proceedings were pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016.

The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and the 
valuation done while taking loan from the banks or �nancial institutions’ along with the reasons thereof
No such instance of one-time settlement has been done by the Company with its bankers during the period under review.
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ANNEXURE - A

1. A brief Outline on CSR Policy 
 You Company's focus is to tie up with implementing agencies that are engaged in deeper and meaningful projects, such that 

the Company's corpus for Corporate Social Responsibility activities shall have a higher impact. The Company believes that its 
job as a responsible corporate citizen is to solve problems and overcome challenges through its services and actions, thereby 
contribute to advancing and growing education world.

 Your Company is committed to create lasting value for society and has placed strategic focus areas for its Corporate Social 

 Student Potential Upliftment

 • Underprivileged and Orphan Education Alleviation

 • Education programs for Special Kids

 • Programs directed towards Girl Child Education

 Buddy4Study India Foundation

 Amidst the COVID-19 outbreak, your Company supported by setting up a Scholarship fund with Buddy4study to provide 
financial assistance to 20 COVID-19 affected students who had lost their parent (s)/earning member(s) or whose family 
members had lost their employment (or livelihood) in COVID-19 pandemic.

 

 Bijapur Integrated Rural Development Society is a registered Voluntary Organization under Karnataka Societies Registration 
Act 1960 and committed for integrated rural development since 1989.

 BIRDS has been working with the vulnerable target group families especially, landless, Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes 
(SC/STs), small and marginal farmers, women on socio economic issues and development of rural poor through diversified 
developmental activities.   

 Under this program your Company has funded their School’s basic development needs like sanitation, infrastructure, 
administrative, IT assets etc. of needy schools /NGOs in the country. 

 S.H.E.D is a NGO which runs a number of programs in Education, Health, Livelihood, Environment and Community 
Development. Their programs are directed towards weaker sections of society, providing skill training for income generation 
and Reduce levels of children dropping out of school

 Under this program your Company has funded Education support for the Dharavi School Students by way of providing 
infrastructure, administrative, IT assets etc, nutrition support, etc.  
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2. Composition of CSR Committee

Sr. 
No. Directorship

Committee held 
during the year

Committee 
attended during

the year
1 Mr. Manish Chokhani Independent Director Chairman 1 1

2 Mr. Neeraj Saxena Managing Director & CEO Member 1 1

3 Mr. Gautam Jain Non-Executive Director Member 1 1

4 Mr. Deo Shankar Tripathi Independent Director Member 1 1
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3.   Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board 
are disclosed on the website of the Company: https://www.auxilo.com/policy.

4.   Provide the executive summary along with the web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR projects carried out in 
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable – Not Applicable.

5. (a) Rs. 20,97,98,890

(b) Rs. 41,96,000/-

(c ) NIL

(d) NIL

(e) Rs. 41,96,000/-

5. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both ongoing project and other than ongoing project) Rs. 42,00,078/-

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads -

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable -

(d) Rs. 42,00,078/-

   (e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount 

Financial Year.
 

Amount
Fund

Amount

Rs. 42,00,078/- - - - - -

   (f) Excess amount for set off, if any: Not applicable

Sr. No. Particular

(i) -

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year -

(iii) -

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 
Financial Years, if any

-

(v) -

7.  Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three �nancial years: Not applicable

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Sr. 
No.

Preceding  
F.Y.

Amount 

to Unspent 
CSR Account 
under Section 

Balance Amount 
in unspent CSR 
Account under 

 

the reporting

Amount spent 
in the Financial 

under Schedule VII as 
per second proviso to 

Amount 
remaining to 

be spent in 
Succeeding 

Amount  

(Rs.) - - - - -
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8.   Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 
amount spent in the Financial Year: No

9.   Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net pro�t as 
per section 135(5): Not Applicable 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
 

SD/-        SD/-                                                                                                          

Mr. Manish Chokhani   Mr. Neeraj Saxena
Chairman      Managing Director and CEO
DIN -00204011    DIN –  07951705

Place – Mumbai

Date –  May 07, 2024
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ANNEXURE-B

{Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014}

To,
The Members,

Kalpataru Square,
Kondivita Road, 
Andheri East,
Mumbai 400059.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by Auxilo Finserve Private Limited (hereinafter called "the Company"). Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct I statutory compliance and expressing our opinion thereon.

year ended on March 31, 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed here under and also that the Company has proper 
Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (during the period under review not applicable 
to the company);

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

 (a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011(during 
the period under review not applicable to the company);

 (b) 

 (c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

 (d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (during the 

 (e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;

 (f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client 

 (g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (during the period under 

 (h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (during the period under review 

(vi) Non-Banking Financial Company – Systematically Important Non- Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 
(up to the period it was effective);
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(vii) Non-Banking Financial Company Returns (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016;

(viii) Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016;

(ix) Master Direction - Information Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector;

(x) Master Direction – Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016;

(xi) Master Direction – Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023.

We have examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(ii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, 
etc.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of the Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors 
and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notices are given to all Directors to schedule the Board / Committee Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance to all the Directors. Meetings held at shorter notice are in compliance with the provisions of the 

for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of 
the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. 

Company. 

by the Board at its meeting held on December 20, 2023.
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For Mehta & Mehta,
Company Secretaries
(ICSI Unique Code P1996MH007500)

SD/-

Aditi Patnaik
Partner
ACS No: 45308
CP No: 18186
PR No: 3686/2023
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 07, 2024
UDIN: A045308F000328470

 This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 'ANNEXURE A' and forms an integral part of this 
report.
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Annexure A

To,
The Members,

Kalptaru Square, 
Kondivita Road, 
Andheri East,
Mumbai 400059.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness 

secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

4) Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events etc.

5) The compliance of the provisions of corporate laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our 

Audit Report in Form MR-3 the adherence and compliance to the requirements of the said regulations is the responsibility 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Mehta & Mehta,
Company Secretaries
(ICSI Unique Code P1996MH007500)

SD/-

Aditi Patnaik
Partner
ACS No: 45308
CP No: 18186
PR No: 3686/2023

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 07, 2024
UDIN: A045308F000328470
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Indian Economy and Overview

worldwide. Key drivers of this expansion included increased public investment and a thriving service sector, supported by both 
the country's business service exports and robust domestic demand. These factors, pivotal in driving the economy's growth during 
FY23-24, are expected to maintain a similar upward trajectory into FY24-25. The IMF has adjusted its GDP growth projection for 

On the policy front, the government has prioritized economic reforms aimed at enhancing competitiveness and fostering sustainable 
growth. Initiatives such as the Production-Linked Incentive (PLI) scheme, privatization drive, and infrastructure investments are 
poised to stimulate economic activity and attract foreign investment. During FY23-24, GST collections witnessed a notable rise of 

the Suez Canal and the Red Sea. Consequently, this has exerted upward pressure on global food prices. The U.S. Energy Information 
Administration forecasts Brent Crude prices to stay above USD 85 per barrel this year, suggesting that the crude oil market has 

the U.S. Federal Reserve may result in a postponement of the RBI Rate cut cycle.

policy reforms, and innovation are key drivers of sustainable economic development. Domestic credit growth has remained strong 

growth can present a challenge to credit growth. Therefore, banks must expedite deposit growth to sustain credit growth.

Industry Structure and Development
The Indian education sector is experiencing rapid transformation, offering numerous opportunities for stakeholders. With 
appropriate policies, investments, and innovations, India can leverage its demographic dividend and establish itself as a global 
centre for quality education and skill development. The Indian government has initiated various programs to enhance education 
accessibility and quality, including the Sarva Shiksha Abhiyan (SSA) for universal elementary education, the Rashtriya Madhyamik 
Shiksha Abhiyan (RMSA) for secondary education, and the National Education Policy (NEP) 2020 for comprehensive education 

1.13 lakh crore in 2023-24 to INR 1.20 lakh crore in FY 2024-25. Additionally, the allocation for the Samagra Shiksha Abhiyan saw 
a slight rise of INR 46.5 crore, reaching INR 37,500 crore in 2024-25. The NEP 2020 aims to promote fundamental literacy and 
numeracy, integrate vocational education with mainstream education, and encourage multidisciplinary learning.

Studying abroad provides Indian students with a transformative educational experience, enriching their academic journey, 
broadening their horizons and preparing them for success in an increasingly interconnected world. Additionally, the number of 
International Baccalaureate (IB) schools has surged from approximately 30 in the early 2000 to 223 in 2023. Moreover, there has 
been a substantial increase in the number of students graduating with an IB diploma, rising from 723 in 2006 to 5,370 in 2022. 
These trends indicate a growing preference among Indian parents for providing international education to their children.

to INR 96,853 crore in the previous year. Reserve Bank of India (RBI) data indicates that this surge in education loans represents the 

Embassy and its consulates in India granted an unprecedented 140,000 student visas. According to a research report, out of all the 

Our Business

India and Abroad. The Company continues to focus and drive growth from this segment. Out of the total disbursement made in 

b)  Skill Development Loans (SDL): The company is affiliated with the National Skill Development Corporation (NSDC). Under 

the same with the evolving demands of the job market domestically and internationally. The company has developed digital 
technology to onboard customers and process loans.
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of educational institutes in Tier 2 and Tier 3 cities. The Company expects this segment to strengthen and grow at an improved 
pace from the next academic year with an increase in student strength and fee collection.

FINANCIAL & OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE IN FY 2024

As of March'24, we had 10,221 EL & SDL customers and 96 EIL customers. In the near term, we plan to leverage our existing 
branches and undertake further innovations in our digital processes to grow a granular book and ensure healthy portfolio quality.

ADVANCES

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

265.0

490.0
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During the year under the Colending arrangement, the company entered into a Direct Assignment transaction with a Public 
Sector Bank. The amount of the loan account assigned to the Bank was INR 92.6 Cr as of the transfer date. The total assets under 
management as of March 2024 amounted to INR 2,942.1 Cr (Principal Outstanding).
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Total CAR

FY 19 - 20 FY 20 - 21 FY 21 - 22 FY 22 - 23 FY 23 - 24

74.0

67.0

47.8

24.7

31.5

Gross NPA & Net NPA

FY 22 - 23 FY 23 - 24

1.7

1.2

0.9

0.5

Gross NPA

Net NPA

As of March 2023, the Company had NPAs totalling INR 27.9 Cr, which decreased to INR 25.1 Cr by March 2024. Successful 
recovery efforts led to the upgradation of 8 NPA customers. Furthermore, one NPA case was written off after partial recovery, with 
the remaining principal of INR 0.7Cr being written off.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

r in Crore

Particulars
Year ended  Year ended

Revenue from operations 356.7 178.3

Other income 10.6 12.6

Total Income 367.3

Finance costs 195.3 95.5

Net Income 95.4

  

41.8 32.5

Depreciation and amortisation expense 5.5 4.3

Other expenses 25.2 19.2

6.8 4.6

Total expenses 79.3 60.6

92.7 34.8

Tax expense 23.5 9.0

69.2 25.8

TOTAL INCOME

FY 18 - 19 FY 19 - 20 FY 20 - 21 FY 21 - 22 FY 22 - 23 FY 23 - 24
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FINANCE COST
The incremental borrowings (net of repayments) of INR 1,577.8 crores availed during the year funded the increase in AUM. This led 

EXPENSES
The total expenses for FY24 amounted to INR 274.6 crore, compared to INR 156.1 crore in FY23.

Operating expenses, which include employee costs and other expenses, for FY24 totaled INR 67.0 Cr (INR 51.7 Cr in FY23). The 

due to the addition of 86 employees hired during the year, bringing the total headcount to 349 employees.
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During the year, additional provisioning for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) was INR 6.8 Crore, compared to INR 4.6 Crore in the 
previous year.
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BALANCE SHEET

crore in FY23.

The Company has ample liquidity, with cash and cash equivalents totaling INR 372.7 crore in FY24, compared to INR 234.1 crore in 
FY23.

Abridged Balance Sheet Statement

r in Crore

Particulars
Year ended  Year ended

Liabilities & Equity
Equity share capital 490.1 376.3

Other equity 498.2 82.1

Net worth 988.3 458.4
Debt Securities 241.3 297.1

Borrowings

Total Borrowings 2,345.2 1,459.9

28.5 31.0

Non-Financial Liabilities 7.4 4.8

Total 3,369.4
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 372.7 234.1

Bank balances 94.7 13.2

Loans 2,859.4 1,676.6

Other Financial Assets 18.2 3.5

Non-Financial Assets 24.4 26.7

Total 3,369.4

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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Borrowings
Total borrowings (including debt securities) of the Company stood at INR 2,345.2 crore in FY24, compared to INR 1,459.9 crore in 
FY23. During the year, the Company initiated banking relationships with several new lenders. The company maintained a healthy 
mix of term loans, working capital facilities, commercial papers, and NCDs. 

Private Placement of Shares
During FY 23-24, the Company issued Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (Series A CCPS) and equity shares at a premium, 
aggregating to r 469.8 Cr on a private placement basis to investors.

ANALYSIS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGE IN FINANCIAL RATIOS
(Amount in Cr)

As at  As at  VARIANCE

Debt equity ratio 2.4 3.2 Equity issued during the year through private 
placement resulted in a decline in the ratioTotal debts to total assets 0.7 0.8

ROE 9.6 6.1
An increase in book size and gain on account 
of operating leverage has led to an increase 

compared to the previous year.

Gross Stage 3 asset Upgradation of accounts due to recovery 
from NPA cases and due to write-offNet Stage 3 asset

CRAR
Primarily due to capital infusion through 
private placement

Opportunities

the number of Indian students pursuing higher education abroad will escalate to 20 lakhs by 2025, accompanied by a surge in direct 
expenditure on overseas education, projected to reach a peak of $70 billion.

and pursue their academic interests. From STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics) fields to humanities, 

aspirations. The University Grants Commission (UGC) has also released guidelines allowing for the setting up and operation of 
campuses of Foreign Higher Educational Institutions (FHEI) in India.

As educational costs continue to escalate, many students and their families may encounter challenges in meeting the expenses of 

expenses, travel costs, and other related expenses associated with studying abroad.

Threats
Since the company is associated with education financing, it faces threats from dynamic immigration laws, work visa permits, 
geopolitical instability, and changes in other policies. The recent escalation in diplomatic tensions between India and Canada led 
students to think about alternative destinations for higher studies and shows how international relations can affect the industry. 
Slowdown in major economies across the world can result in job losses and layoffs which can impact employment opportunities for 
the students. This could lead to a rise in delinquency levels.

Risks and Concerns

of risks. The process of risk management involves strategic decision-making and the establishment of governance systems that 
integrate and facilitate effective risk processes while cultivating an organizational culture conducive to agility. This includes the 
formation of a Risk Management Committee (RMC) comprising directors and senior management as Committee members.

Various measures have been adopted by the company to address both existing and potential risks associated with its business operations:

1. 
and management of risks, thereby minimizing their potential impact and enhancing overall performance.

2. The company strives to adopt industry-leading practices in governance, compliance, and customer 
service to bolster its reputation, attract customers and capture the interest of investors.

3.  There is a concerted effort to leverage technology to streamline business operations and enhance the 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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4.  A corporate culture emphasizing transparency, integrity, and accountability is fostered 
to establish trust with customers, investors, and stakeholders.

5. The company is actively developing a sustainable business model that strikes a 
balance between growth and risk management to ensure long-term sustainable growth.

A robust governance framework ensures that board committees review and approve risk strategies. Strong underwriting 
practices and continuous risk monitoring are employed to maintain portfolios within acceptable risk levels. The company adheres 
to RBI prudential norms for asset classifications and follows the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model prescribed under Ind AS for 
provisioning. Despite challenges, the company's loan portfolio remains healthy and continues to grow.

The company is committed to achieve excellence through continuous effort and ongoing improvement.

Internal Controls
The internal control framework of the company is tailored to align with the scale of its operations and the complexities inherent in 
its business operations.

and effectiveness of all internal controls and processes. Any notable audit findings and subsequent actions taken are promptly 
communicated to the Audit Committee for review.

The Audit Committee diligently examines the internal audit reports, scrutinizing the adequacy and effectiveness of our internal 
control environment. This oversight ensures that our internal control systems remain robust and capable of safeguarding the 
company's assets, mitigating risks, and upholding compliance standards.

Human Resources
At Auxilo, we recognize that our employees are our most valuable assets. The company prioritizes initiatives aimed at enhancing 
employee performance, well-being, skill development, growth, and engagement, placing a special emphasis on supporting women 
through our WOW (Workplace Optimization of Women) program.

to facilitate our expansion into new product lines. We offer a comprehensive induction program to all new hires, which includes 
orientation to the organization, product and process familiarization, and in-person induction sessions tailored for mid to senior-level 
managers. Our induction and statutory training modules are delivered through an e-learning platform, ensuring comprehensive 
coverage and efficient tracking of progress. As of March 31, 2024, our workforce comprises 349 employees. Auxilo cultivates a 
culture of empowered productivity, aimed at fostering an outcome-driven organization.

Brand Reach
In FY24, Auxilo initiated a significant shift in its brand strategy, aiming to become a trusted resource for students. This 
transformation involved the execution of various campaigns, fostering engagement with student communities, and partnering with 

to students' interests and actively participated in platforms frequented by students.

As a result of these efforts and improvements, the company's social media presence garnered a remarkable brand reach of over 6.7 

Outlook
The Company's outlook for the upcoming year is centred on fostering profitable and sustainable growth, nurturing high-quality 
assets, and maintaining a steadfast focus on its core products, namely Education Loans and Education Institution Loans, to address 
evolving customer requirements. Embracing technological advancements, we are committed to enhancing the customer experience 
and delivering value to all stakeholders.

Cautionary Statement
Statements made in this Annual Report may contain certain forward-looking statements, which are tentative, based on various 
assumptions about Auxilo Finserve Private Limited’s present and future business strategies and the environment in which we 
operate. Due to risks and uncertainties, actual results may differ substantially or materially from those expressed or implied. 
These risks and uncertainties include the effect of economic and political conditions in India and internationally, new regulations 
and Government policies that may impact the Company’s businesses, and the ability to implement its strategies. The information 
contained herein is as of the date referenced, and Auxilo Finserve is not obligated to update these statements. Auxilo Finserve 
Private Limited has obtained all market data and other information from sources believed to be reliable or internal estimates, 
although its accuracy or completeness cannot be guaranteed. The discussion relating to business-wise financial performance, 

and may not directly correspond to published data. In this discussion, for consistency and comparability with prior periods, Balance 
Sheet size and relevant ratios are calculated based on the principal amount of Borrowings. The numbers have also been rounded 
off in the interest of easier understanding. All numbers are as per IndAS. The company has adopted IndAS from April 01, 2020, 
and the amount mentioned in the report for the period before the date of transition is computed using information available and 
by applying management judgment and estimates relevant to the past. The amount mentioned for the period before the date of 
transition is unaudited IndAS amounts. All information in this discussion has been prepared solely by the Company and has not been 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of 

Auxilo Finserve Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the Financial Statements of Auxilo Finserve Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as 

of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Financial Statements 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, (Ind AS) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 

in Equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Financial 

Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each 
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to 
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the 
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Financial Statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

       As described in Note 2.08A, Note 6 and 42.A of the Financial Statements 

Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments ("Ind AS 109") requires the 
Company to provide for impairment of its loan assets using the 
expected credit loss (ECL) approach. ECL involves an estimation 
of probability  weighted loss on financial instruments over 
their life, considering reasonable and supportable information 
about past events, current conditions, and forecasts of future 
economic conditions which could impact the credit quality of 

degree of judgement has been applied by the management for:

a) Defining Staging of loans (i.e. classification in 'Significant 
Increase in Credit Risk' ("SICR") and 'default' categories);

b) Grouping of borrowers based on homogeneity by using 
appropriate statistical techniques;

c) Estimation of behavioural life;

d) Estimation of losses for loan products with no / minimal 
historical default; and

e) Management overlay for macro-economic factors and 
estimation of their impact on the credit quality.

In the view of such high degree of management’s judgement 

Our audit procedures included the following:

• Evaluated the Company's accounting policies in respect of 
loans and ECL provisioning against the same

• Evaluated the management estimates by understanding 
the process of ECL estimation and related assumptions and 
tested the controls around data extraction and validation

• Assessed the criteria and tested sample for staging of loans 
based on their past-due status and to evaluate compliance 
with requirement of Ind AS 109. 

• Tested the ECL model,  including assumptions and 
underlying computation. Tested the input data used for 
determining the Probability of default and loss given 
default rates and agreed the data with the underlying 
books of account and records.

• Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of ECL 
provision performed by the Company.

• Read and assessed adequacy of the disclosures included 
in the financial statements in respect of ECL with the 
requirements of Ind AS 107 Financial Instruments: 
Disclosure ("Ind AS 107'') and Ind AS 109.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

are fundamentally reliant on IT systems and IT controls to 

procedures and IT environment controls, which include IT 
governance, general IT controls over program development and 
changes, access to programs and data and IT operations, are 
required to be designed and to operate effectively to ensure 

Therefore, due to the pervasive nature and complexity of the IT 
environment, the assessment of the general IT controls and the 

of the financial information is considered to be a key audit 
matter.

Our audit procedures, with support from IT specialists, included 
the following: 

• Tested the design and operating effectiveness of IT access 
controls over the information systems that are critical to 

• Tested IT general controls (such as logical access, changes 
management and aspects of IT operational controls). This 
included testing that requests for access to systems were 
appropriately reviewed and authorised.

• Tested the Company's periodic review of access rights. We 
inspected requests of changes to systems for appropriate 
approval and authorisation.

• In addition to the above, we tested the design and operating 
effectiveness of certain application controls (automated 
and IT dependent manual controls) that were considered as 

• Tested compensating controls or performed alternate 
procedures, wherever required.

Other Information
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Board’s Report 
(“other information”), but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Based on the work we have performed, if we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance including Other Comprehensive Income, Cash Flows and Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the 

Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

Statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures and whether the 
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because of the adverse 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in 

terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books;

Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account;

the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as amended;

 (e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the 

of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

these Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” 
to this report;

 (g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the provisions of Section 
197 of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024; 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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 (h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:

  i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position- Refer note 33 to 
Financial Statements;

   ii. The Company did not have any long- term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 

  iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company.

  iv. (a)  The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 47 to the 

funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or 
entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 

   (b)  The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 47 to the 

including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 

   (c)  Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material misstatement.

  v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

  vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting software for maintaining 
its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we 
did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Jaspreet Singh Bedi
Partner

Membership No.: 601788

UDIN:  24601788BKFMUL3940

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 07, 2024
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“ANNEXURE 1” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 
AUXILO FINSERVE PRIVATE LIMITED

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and the situation of 
Property, Plant and Equipment.

 (b) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is 
reasonable.

Company.

 (e)  The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets 
during the year ended March 31, 2024.

 (f)  According to information and explanations given to us, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the 
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules 
made thereunder.   

(ii) (a)  The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the requirement to report on 
clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

 (b)  As disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess 

the books of accounts of the Company.

(iii) (a)  The Company's principal business is to give loans accordingly, Clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

 (b)  Based on our examination and the information and explanations given to us, in respect of the loans, in our opinion, the 
terms and conditions under which such loans were granted are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

 (c)  In respect of loans granted to students pursuing education and provide infrastructure or working capital loan to the 
educational institutions, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the 
repayment or receipts are regular except in the following cases:

Due date

Education loan and Education 
institution loan

5,633.70 Various due 
dates

More than one day -

 (d)  In respect of the loans/advances in nature of loans, the following amounts are overdue for more than ninety days, and 
reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of the overdue amount of principal and interest.

Principal overdue  Interest overdue   

22 1,995.90 511.90 2,507.79 -

 (e)  The Company’s principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, the provision of Clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

 (f)  According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature 
of loans, either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to Promoters, related 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantee or security in connection with any loan taken by parties 
covered under section 185. Therefore, the provisions of section 185 are not applicable to the Company. The Company is 
registered as Non- Banking Financial Company with the Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the provisions of Section 186, except 
subsection (1) of Section 186, of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Further, the Company has not made any investment 
to the parties covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said 
Order in respect of Section 186(1) is not applicable.

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits 
within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. 
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(vi) The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as prescribed. Accordingly, the 
requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, 
the Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including goods and services tax, provident 
fund, employee’s state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, 
and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

 (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there are no 
dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs 
duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.               

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, 
previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the 
year. 

(ix) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other 
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

authority.

 (c)  According to the information and explanations given to us, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans 
were obtained. 

Company, no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

 (e)  The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 
3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

 (f)  The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a)  According to the information and explanations are given to us, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial 
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

 (b)  The Company has complied with provision of section 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares during the year. The funds raised, have been used for the purposes for which the 
funds were raised.      

(xi) (a)  According to the information and explanations are given to us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the 
Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

 (b)  During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by a 
secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT – 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
with the Central Government.

 (c)  As represented to us by the management, there are no whistleblower complaints received by the company during the 
year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to report 
on clauses 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations are given to us, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the 

(xiv) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with 
the size and nature of its business.

 (b)  The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under audit have been 
considered by us.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence the requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a)  According to the Information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed by us, the Company has 
registered as required, under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Registration from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
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 (c)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. 
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

 (d)  According to the Information and explanations given to us, there is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, 
hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xvii)

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xviii) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we 
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a)  In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund 

 (b)  There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a special account in 
compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 37 to 

(xxi) The Company does not prepare consolidated financial statements, hence the requirement to report on clause 3(xxi) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Jaspreet Singh Bedi
Partner
Membership No.: 601788
UDIN:  24601788BKFMUL3940

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 07, 2024

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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“ANNEXURE 2” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 
AUXILO FINSERVE PRIVATE LIMITED

To 
The Member of 
Auxilo Finserve Private Limited

March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 

the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

Auditors’ Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 

and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion

control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Jaspreet Singh Bedi
Partner
Membership No.: 601788
UDIN:  24601788BKFMUL3940

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 07, 2024
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BALANCE SHEET as at March 31, 2024
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars
Note 
No.

 As at   As at  

ASSETS
Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 3  37,273.24  23,409.91 
(b) Bank balances other than (a) above 4  9,466.09  1,318.66 
(c) Receivables

 Trade receivables 5  415.59  183.80 
(d) Loans 6  2,85,938.98  1,67,654.93 
(e) 7  1,402.15  168.28 

 3,34,496.05 
Non Financial Assets
(a) Current tax assets (net) 8  129.40  222.90 
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 9  -    206.53 
(c) Property, plant and equipment 10  320.82  325.81 
(d) Right-of-use assets 10  1,003.36  1,317.57 
(e) Intangible assets under development 11  89.68  153.47 
(f) Other Intangible assets 10  483.72  163.27 
(g) 12  414.56  284.70 

 2,674.25 
Total Assets  3,36,937.59 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilities
(a) 13  132.13  -   
(b) Trade payables

i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  -    -   
ii)  total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 

and small enterprises
 -    -   

(c) Debt securities 14  24,134.51  29,709.29 
(d) Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 15  2,10,384.90  1,16,283.41 
(e) Lease liabilities  1,139.96  1,393.79 
(f) 16  1,572.62  1,707.15 

Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Provisions 17  255.10  173.44 
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 9  124.25  -   
(c) 18  364.08  308.90 

 743.43  482.34 
EQUITY

(a) Equity share capital 19A  37,699.11  37,626.61 
(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature 19B  11,313.41  -   
(c) Other equity 20  49,817.52  8,207.24 

 98,830.04  45,833.85 
Total Liabilities and Equity  3,36,937.59 

Material accounting policies 2

This is the Balance Sheet referred in our report of even date.       

For Nangia & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 002391C/N500069

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Auxilo Finserve Private Limited

Jaspreet Singh Bedi
Partner
Membership No. - 601788

Neeraj Saxena

DIN - 07951705

 Chinnathambi Ilango 
 Director 
 DIN - 03498879 

Harsha Saksena  Deepika Thakur Chauhan 
 Company Secretary 

Mumbai
May 07, 2024

Mumbai
May 07, 2024

Auxilo Finserve Private Limited



57

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars
Note 
No.

For the  
year ended 

For the  
year ended 

(a) Interest income 21  31,975.72  16,976.71 
(b) Fees and commission income 22  1,845.04  405.20 
(c) Net gain on fair value changes 23  834.81  444.19 
(d)

cost category
24  1,012.58  -   

25  1,064.70  1,257.26 
 36,732.85 

Expenses
(a) Finance costs 26  19,528.11  9,547.65 
(b) 27  678.79  455.36 
(c) 28  4,176.15  3,251.67 
(d) Depreciation, amortization and impairment 10  556.85  434.59 
(e) Others expenses 29  2,523.58  1,924.14 
Total expenses  27,463.48 

 9,269.37  3,469.95 
30

(a) Current tax  2,012.71  782.68 
(b) Short / (Excess) provision for earlier years  (2.81)  9.28 
(c) Deferred tax  337.60  103.25 

 2,347.50 
 2,574.74 

(a)
 (27.10)  (17.11)

and loss
 6.82  4.31 

(b)  -    -   
 -    -   

 6,901.59  2,561.94 

Basic 32  1.58  0.71 
Diluted 32  1.37  0.71 

Material accounting policies 2

For Nangia & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 002391C/N500069

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Auxilo Finserve Private Limited

Jaspreet Singh Bedi
Partner
Membership No. - 601788

Neeraj Saxena

DIN - 07951705

 Chinnathambi Ilango 
 Director 
 DIN - 03498879 

Harsha Saksena  Deepika Thakur Chauhan 
 Company Secretary 

Mumbai
May 07, 2024

Mumbai
May 07, 2024

Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS for the year March 31, 2024
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars
 For the  

year ended  
 For the  

year ended  

A 
 9,269.37  3,469.95 

Depreciation and amortisation  556.85  434.59 

Interest adjustments lease liabilities  108.43  78.41 

Interest expense  19,120.97  9,322.43 

Interest paid  (18,473.27)  (8,452.79)

Interest income on loans  (31,213.47)  (16,795.38)

Interest received  9,062.47  7,444.65 

 678.79  455.36 

Net gain on fair value changes  (834.81)  (444.19)

 (0.26)  (1.51)

Provision for compensated absences  23.00  12.83 

Provision for gratuity  31.56  16.54 

Interest expense on security deposit  9.86  8.44 

Unwinding of discount on security deposits  (8.96)  (7.97)

Employees stock option provision  54.95  65.31 

Add / (less): adjustments for working capital changes
Increase in trade receivables  (231.77)  (152.76)

Increase in loans  (96,814.30)  (82,773.39)

 (1,234.08)  (78.07)

 (176.08)  (95.08)

Increase in other bank balances  (8,145.68)  (651.86)

Increase in right-of-use assets  -    (1,370.26)

Increase in lease liabilities  -    1,369.78 

Increase in ECL on cash and cash equivalents  0.13  0.03 

 (134.53)  539.12 

 55.18  130.68 

Cash used in operations
Income taxes paid (net of refunds received)  (1,916.40)  (949.43)

Net cash used in operating activities -A

B
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets (including asset under 
development)

 (494.67)  (496.09)

Sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  0.62  2.83 

Purchase of investments  (1,61,101.00)  (92,654.83)

Proceeds from sale of investments  1,62,067.94  93,099.01 

 472.89 

C
Proceeds from call money on OCPS  -    263.73 

Proceeds from issue of equity shares including securities premium  80.34  4,040.47 

Proceeds from issue of preference shares including securities premium  46,984.65  -   

Share issue expenses  (979.12)  (1.21)

Payment towards leases  (362.26)  (285.78)

Proceeds from issue of debt securities  19,991.59  18,959.14 

Repayment of debt securities  (25,614.57)  (3,476.49)

Proceeds from borrowings (other than debt securities)  1,37,783.00  1,01,971.53 

Repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities)  (44,281.01)  (18,000.90)

Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
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This is Statement of Cash Flow referred in our report of even date.       

For Nangia & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 002391C/N500069

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Auxilo Finserve Private Limited

Jaspreet Singh Bedi
Partner
Membership No. - 601788

Neeraj Saxena

DIN - 07951705

 Chinnathambi Ilango 
 Director 
 DIN - 03498879 

Harsha Saksena  Deepika Thakur Chauhan 
 Company Secretary 

Mumbai
May 07, 2024

Mumbai
May 07, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars
 For the  

year ended  
 For the  

year ended  

Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year  23,410.01  8,413.17 

Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year  37,273.47  23,410.01 

i)  As at  As at 
Particulars
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per above comprise of the following (note 3)

  - In Current accounts  19,726.07  8,882.16 

  - In Fixed deposits  17,547.40  14,527.85 

 37,273.47 

ii) The above Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard - 7 

iii) The cash and cash equivalent as shown in balance sheet is net of impairment allowance of INR 0.23 lakh (Previous year INR 0.10 
lakh). 

iv) For Net debt reconciliation refer note - 45. 

Material accounting policies 2

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS for the year March 31, 2024 (Contd.)

Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY as at March 31, 2024
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

A.  Equity Share Capital

Particulars
Shares

Amount
Shares

Amount

 37,62,66,135  37,626.61  34,94,44,987  34,944.50 

Add: Changes in equity share capital due to prior period 
errors

 -    -    -    -   

reporting year
 34,94,44,987  34,944.50 

Add: Changes in equity share capital during the year  7,25,015  72.50  2,68,21,148  2,682.11 

B.  Instruments entirely equity in nature

Particulars
Shares

Amount
Shares

Amount

 -    -    -    -   

Add: Changes in compulsorily convertible preference shares due 
to prior period errors

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

Add: Changes in compulsorily convertible preference shares 
capital during the year

 11,31,34,145  11,313.41  -    -   

 -    -

C.  Other Equity

Particulars
 Total 

Equity 

Equity 
component 

instrument

Reserves and Surplus

Securities 
premium

Statutory 
reserve

Employee 
stock 

options

Retained 
Earnings

 2.93  639.89  448.54  664.64 

Changes in accounting policy/prior period 
errors

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 2.93  639.89  448.54  664.64 

 -    -    -    -    2,574.74  2,574.74 

Other comprehensive income for the 
year

 -    -    -    -    (12.80)  (12.80)

Money called up and paid on OCPS  263.73  -    -    -    263.73 

Converted to Equity Shares  (266.66)  -    -    -    -    (266.66)

Issue of equity shares  -    1,625.02  -    -    -    1,625.02 

Share issue expenses  -    (1.21)  -    -    -    (1.21)

Transfer (from) / to  -    -    512.39  (162.32)  (350.07)  -   

Employee share options  -    -    -    65.31  -    65.31 

 -    3,826.92  8,207.24 

Changes in accounting policy/prior period 
errors

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
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Particulars
 Total 

Equity 

Equity 
component 

instrument

Reserves and Surplus

Securities 
premium

Statutory 
reserve

Employee 
stock 

options

Retained 
Earnings

 -    3,826.92  8,207.24 

 -    -    -    -    6,921.87  6,921.87 

Other comprehensive income for the 
year

 -    -    -    -    (20.28)  (20.28)

Issue of equity shares  -    7.89  -    -    -    7.89 

Issue of compulsorily convertible 
preference shares

 -    35,671.19  -    -    -    35,671.19 

Share issue expenses  -    (1,025.34)  -    -    -    (1,025.34)

Transfer (from) / to  -    -    1,380.32  (30.17)  (1,350.15)  -   

Employee share options  -    -    -    54.95  -    54.95 

 -    38,480.66  2,532.60  8,427.95 

 Material accounting policies - Refer Note 2

This is the Statement of changes in equity referred in our report of even date.      
 

For Nangia & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 002391C/N500069

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Auxilo Finserve Private Limited

Jaspreet Singh Bedi
Partner
Membership No. - 601788

Neeraj Saxena

DIN - 07951705

 Chinnathambi Ilango 
 Director 
 DIN - 03498879 

Harsha Saksena  Deepika Thakur Chauhan 
 Company Secretary 

Mumbai
May 07, 2024

Mumbai
May 07, 2024

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY as at March 31, 2024 (Contd.)

Auxilo Finserve Private Limited

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)
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Notes to the �nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. Corporate Information 

 Auxilo Finserve Private Limited (the ‘Company’) is a middle layered NBFC registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The 
Company has been incorporated on October 04, 2016. The Company received NBFC license from the Reserve Bank of India 
(RBI) on May 03, 2017. 

 The main objective of the Company is to originate, provide and service loans to students pursuing education and provide 
ancillary services in relation to the said business activity and provide infrastructure or working capital loan to educational 
institutions. The Company's Debenture securities are listed on BSE Limited. 

400059.

 Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U65990MH2016PTC286516 

resolution of the Board of Directors on May 07, 2024. 

2 Material accounting policy 
 

under section 133 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other 
related provision of Act. Effective April 01, 2020, the Company had adopted all the Ind AS and the adoption was carried out in 
accordance with Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, with April 1, 2019 as the transition date to 
Ind AS. 

 The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied 

issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on May 07, 2024. 

 The financial statement comprises of statement of financial position as at March 31, 2024, statement of profit and loss, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and related explanatory notes. The 
Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting Standards 

other relevant provisions of the Act. 

 The Company has assessed its liquidity position and its possible sources of funds. The Board of Directors of the Company are 

 The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention as modified by the 
application of fair value measurements required or allowed by the relevant standards under Ind AS.

 Historical cost is generally the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the consideration given in exchange 
for goods and services.

assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including 
contingent liabilities) and disclosures as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses for the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Accounting estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and could change from period to period. Appropriate changes in estimates are 
recognised in the periods in which the Company becomes aware of the changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. 
Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the period in which the estimate is revised. The 

date are listed here in below under Critical accounting estimates and judgements. 

2.05  Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement and make certain assumptions in applying the Company’s 

Auxilo Finserve Private Limited
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 The use of such estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities 
including the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and 
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in 
the future periods. 

 Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors including 

the circumstances. 

 Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the most 

are included in the following notes: 

about a number of factors including forward looking information, and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes 
to the impairment allowance.

 

  The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each 
reporting period or even earlier in case, circumstances change such that the amount recorded value of an asset may not 
be recoverable.

an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market 
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation 

from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. 
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is 
required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of liquidity and model inputs related 
to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility. For further 
details about determination of fair value please see Note - 41.

 D.  Business model assessment

financial asset are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement 

the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are 

income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons 
are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.

 E.  Provisions

  Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 

reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

  The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation as 
at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

 F.  Contingent liabilities

  Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events or 

rendered. 

Notes to the �nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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   The Company's contribution paid/payable during the year towards Provident and other funds is charged to the 

   The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a non funded defined benefit plan covering eligible employees. 

   Details of the unfunded defined benefit plans for its employees are given in note 39B which is as certified by the 
actuary using projected unit credit method.

   The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-
accumulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial 
valuation using projected unit credit method for the unused entitlement that has accumulated as at the balance sheet 
date.

  The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected 

judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments and other fee income/expense that are 
integral parts of the instrument. 

III to Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) applicable for Non- Banking Finance Companies (“NBFC”) including 
amendment made by MCA from time to time. The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the 
requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flow”. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet 
and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule III to the Act including amendments made thereunder, are 

the notified Ind AS, RBI regulations and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as 
amended from time to time.

2.07 Functional and presentation currency

Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupee to two decimal places.

2.08 Financial Instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets and financial 
liabilities at initial recognition based on its nature and characteristics.

2.08. A Financial assets

  

  All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value 

bank balances. 

  - At amortised cost, and

  - At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), and

  Debt instruments at amortised cost

  A 'Debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

and

interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Notes to the �nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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  Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 

cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (EIR). The effective interest 

  The business model of the Company for assets subsequently measured at amortised cost category is to hold and collect 

of the Company, it may enter into immaterial and infrequent transactions to sell these portfolios to banks and/ or asset 
reconstruction companies without affecting the business model of the Company.

  

cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying 
amount are taken through other comprehensive income (“OCI”), except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, 

included in other income using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

  

loss (‘FVTPL’). 

cost. The calculation of the provision for credit risks generally takes into account the exposure at default, the probability 
of default and the loss given default.

  Financial assets are subject to credit risks, which are taken into account by recognising the amount of the expected loss; 

assets.

broken down into three stages in the general approach.

  Stage 1: 

  For exposures which have not been assessed as credit-impaired or where there has not been a significant increase in 
credit risk since initial recognition.  In this stage, the model requires the calculation of an expected credit loss for the next 
twelve months.

  Stage 2:

impaired. In stage 2 and 3, an expected credit loss is calculated for the entire remaining maturity of the asset.

  Stage 3:

  Loans will be assessed as credit impaired when one or more events having a detrimental impact on the estimated future 

  In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and 
supportable, including historical experience that is available without undue cost or effort.

  1)       More than 30 days past due

  2)       Fall in CIBIL scores more than a certain threshold (Applicable for Education Loans) 

   -  the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to 
actions such as realising security (if any is held): or

Notes to the �nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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  Both historical information, such as average historical default probabilities for each portfolio, and forward-looking 
information is used to determine the measurement parameters for calculating the provision for credit risks.

  Impairment arises in a number of situations, such as delayed payment over a certain period, the initiation of enforcement 
measures, the threat of insolvency or over indebtedness, application for or the initiation of insolvency proceedings, or the 
failure of restructuring measures.

  Reviews are regularly carried out to ensure that the allowances are appropriate. Uncollectible loans or receivables 
that are already subject to a workout process and for which all collateral has been recovered and all further options for 
recovering the loan or receivable have been exhausted are written off directly. Any valuation allowances previously 
recognised are utilised. Income subsequently collected in connection with loans or receivables already written off is 

  Loans and receivables are reported in the balance sheet at the net off ECL provision. The provision for credit risks relating 
to off-balance sheet irrevocable credit commitments is recognised as ECL provision and net off from loans.

  Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety when the Company has no reasonable expectations of 
recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of 

the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due. 

2.08.B Financial liabilities

  All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities classified at amortised 

borrowings etc.

  Financial liabilities at amortised cost

as through the effective interest rate (EIR) amortisation process.

  Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 

2.08. C De-recognition

 A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primary 
derecognised when ;

 -  the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 

Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or (b) the Company has neither transferred 
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

 When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the 
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the 
Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that 

 Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original 
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

 On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount 
allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset 
obtained less any new liability assumed) an (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in 
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2.08.D

 Financial assets and financial liabilities including derivative instruments are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
Balance sheet, if there is currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle 
on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

2.08.E Fair value measurement

 The Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for financial instruments. The 

possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation 
techniques are as follows :

 Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

 Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as 
price) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

 Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

 If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the 
fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is 

 The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which 
the change has occurred.

 Financial Assets

 If the terms of a financial assets are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flow of the modified asset are 

recognised at fair value.

gain or loss in the Statement of profit and loss. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of modified financial 

presented as interest income.

 Financial liabilities

 The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are 
substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified 

held include foreign exchange forward contracts.

 Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date of a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 

loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and is effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the 

 A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is 

2.09 Share capital

 An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its 
liabilities. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new equity shares are recognized as a deduction from 
equity, net of any tax effects.
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 Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances with bank, deposits with bank (with original maturity of three 

borrowings.

are repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity's cash management, bank overdrafts are included as a component 
of cash and cash equivalents.  

 Property, Plant and Equipment (“PPE”) are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, 
if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of 
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the 
purchase price. 

with the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. All other expenses on existing the property, 
plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts are charged to the 

 Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised within other income in statement of 

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on PPE is provided on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost, net of their residual value over the estimated 
useful life of the respective asset. The Company has estimated the useful lives to depreciate its PPE which is in accordance 
with those prescribed under Schedule II of the The Companies Act ,2013. The following are the estimates of the useful lives to 
depreciate its PPE: 

Particulars

5 years

Computer Equipment

-  Desktop/laptop 3 years

-  Server Network 6 years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 years

Lease-hold improvements Over the lease term

 Each item of PPE individually costing INR 5,000/- or less is depreciated over a period of one year. The estimated useful lives, 

appropriate.

 Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets 
are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

 Development costs

 Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products 
controlled by the Company are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

 -  It is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use 

 - Management intends to complete the software and use or sell it

 - There is an ability to use or sell the software

 -  Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software are 
available and 

 -  The expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured 

 Intangible assets under development 
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 Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as a part of software include employee costs and an appropriate portion of 
relevant overheads. Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the 
asset is available for use. 

 Research expenditure and development expenditure that do not meet the above criteria are recognised as an expense as 
incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

 Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. Intangible assets are amortised 
as per management's estimate over a period of 5 years or licence period whichever is earlier.  Intangible assets are assessed 
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the 

are recognised as an expense as incurred. 

 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is 
derecognized. 

may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For 

period.

 Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss that is attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting 

for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. 

extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in OCI.

 Current income tax

 Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities using the tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by 
the balance sheet date and applicable for the period.

 Current tax items in correlation to the underlying transaction relating to OCI and equity are recognized in OCI and in equity 
respectively. 

 Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax 
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be 
paid to the tax authorities. 

 The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously. 

 Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized 
for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying 

time of the transaction. 

 Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any 

differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 

 Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has 
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 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised 
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet 
date.

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off deferred tax assets 
against deferred tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

 Goods and services tax /value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses. Expenses and assets are 
recognised net of the goods and services tax/value added taxes paid, except:

 -  When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, 
the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

 - When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

 The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in 
the balance sheet. 

 -  the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; and

 -  a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

 

 -  a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation; and

 -  a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.

 Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

 - Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for

 - Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid

 - Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and relevant in the opinion of 
management.

 Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are not disclosed to avoid excessive 
details. 

2.20  Leases

 Company as a lessee

 The Company recognises leases as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is 
available for use. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates the consideration in the 
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate 
for which the Company is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for 
these as a single lease component.

 Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present 
value of the following lease payments:

 -  variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the 
commencement date

 -  amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees

 -  the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

 Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability. 
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, 
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which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the 
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in 
a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

 -  the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

 -  any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received

 -  any initial direct costs, and

 -  restoration costs

 Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the 
underlying asset’s useful life.

 In addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurement 
of the lease liability.

 Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line 

comprise IT equipment and multiprotocol label switching (MPLS) equipment (MPLS VPN). 

The fair value of options determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding credit to share options outstanding reserve, based on the Company’s 
estimate of the shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of service conditions.

corresponding adjustment to equity.

2.22  Segment Reporting

 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision 

2.23  Revenue and Expense Recognition

 A.  Interest income

  Interest income is presented in the Statement of profit and loss includes interest on financial assets  measured at 
amortised cost calculated on an effective interest basis. Fee income and expense that are integral to the effective interest 

  The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired financial 

  Subvention Income is recognized as income over the tenor of the loan. The unamortized balance is netted off from loans.

  Commissions earned by the Company which are not directly attributable to disbursal of loans are recognised in the 

  Fee income is recognised when the Company satisfies the performance obligation, at fair value of the consideration 

  Fee income towards any charges for servicing customer requests shall be recognized when received.
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  Gains arising out of direct assignment transactions comprise of the difference between the interest on the loan portfolio 
and the applicable rate at which the direct assignment is entered into with the assignee, also known as the right of 

is evaluated and adjusted for expected prepayment.

 D.  Interest expenses

cost calculated on an effective interest basis. Fee and borrowing costs that are integral to the effective interest rate on 
a financial liability are included in the effective interest rate computation. The amortization of expenses for financial 
liabilities under EIR approach is done on a systematic basis that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the 

 E.  Borrowing costs

  Borrowing costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds including the ancillary cost are amortised and 
accounted as interest expense using the EIR method.

  Other borrowing costs are recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

 There are no new standards or amendments which is issued but not yet effective. 

3. Cash and cash equivalents
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars
 As at   As at  

a) Cash on hand  -    -   

b) Balances with Banks

i) in current accounts  19,726.07  8,882.16 

ii) in deposit accounts having original maturity less than 3 months*  17,547.40  14,527.85 

 37,273.47 

Less: Impairment loss allowance  0.23  0.10 

Total  37,273.24 

 

 Short term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash 
requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

 There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior 
period.

 * includes interest accrued amounting INR 22.40 lakh (As at March 31, 2023 - INR 27.85 lakh).

4. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars
 As at   As at  

Other Bank balances

i) Fixed deposit accounts with maturity more than 3 months  2,501.11  7.74 

ii) Fixed deposits pledged for bank overdraft facility  5,535.32  534.67 

iii) Fixed deposits for Securitisation #  1,432.52  777.36 

 9,468.95 

Less: Impairment loss allowance  2.86  1.11 

Total  9,466.09 

 Note: # Fixed deposit has been earmarked towards credit enhancement towards securitisation transaction. (Refer note - 
49.18.1)
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Notes to the �nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

5. Trade receivables

Particulars
 As at   As at  

Trade receivable considered good - Unsecured  415.63  183.82 

Less: Impairment loss allowance  0.04  0.02 

Total

Particulars Less than  
6 months

 Total

i) Undisputed trade receivables-considered good  415.31  415.31 

ii)  -    -   

iii) Undisputed trade receivables-credit impaired  -    -   

iv) Disputed trade receivables-considered good  -    -   

v)  -    -   

vi) Disputed trade receivables-credit impaired  -    -   

Total

Less: Impairment loss allowance  0.04  0.04 

Total

Particulars 6 months -  
 Total

i) Undisputed trade receivables-considered good  0.32  0.32 

ii)  -    -   

iii) Undisputed trade receivables-credit impaired  -    -   

iv) Disputed trade receivables-considered good  -    -   

v)  -    -   

vi) Disputed trade receivables-credit impaired  -    -   

Total  0.32  0.32 

Less: Impairment loss allowance *  0.00  0.00 

Total  0.32  0.32 

Total

Less: Impairment loss allowance  0.04  0.04 

Total

 * - Less than INR 500

Particulars 6 months -  
 Total

i) Undisputed trade receivables-considered good  183.82  183.82 

ii)  -    -   

iii) Undisputed trade receivables-credit impaired  -    -   

iv) Disputed trade receivables-considered good  -    -   

v)  -    -   

vi) Disputed trade receivables-credit impaired  -    -   

Total

Less: Impairment loss allowance  0.02  0.02 

Total
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Notes to the �nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

 #There are no trade receivable having ageing more than 6 months as on  March 31, 2023.

 Note - Above numbers of trade receivable are inclusive of unbilled trade receivable of Rs. 75.77 lakh (As at March 31, 2023 - 
Rs. 149.86 lakh).   

or director or a member.

6. Loans

Particulars
 As at   As at  

At amortised cost

A. Product wise Details

a) Term loans  2,87,845.68  1,69,051.31 

 2,87,845.68 

Less: Impairment loss allowance  1,906.70  1,396.38 

 2,85,938.98 

B. Security wise Details

a) Secured considered good*

i)   Secured by tangible assets  26,015.10  28,654.03 

ii)  Secured by intangible assets  -    -   

b) Unsecured  2,61,830.58  1,40,397.28 

 2,87,845.68 

Less: Impairment loss allowance  1,906.70  1,396.38 

 2,85,938.98 

C. Region wise Details

a) Loans in India

- Public sector  -    -   

- Others  2,87,845.68  1,69,051.31 

b) Loans outside India  -    -   

 2,87,845.68 

Less: Impairment loss allowance  1,906.70  1,396.38 

 2,85,938.98 

 

 6.1 Refer note - 42.A for details of Credit risk, credit risk management, credit quality and reconciliation of impairment loss 
allowances.

 6.2 There are no loans which has been classified as Fair value through profit and loss and / or Fair value through other 
comprehensive income.

 6.3 There are no loans which are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under the 
Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person, other than disclosed in note 38.



75

Notes to the �nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

7. Other �nancial assets

Particulars
 As at   As at  

Unsecured, considered good

a) Security deposits  191.31  167.22 

b) Receivable from employees  1.38  1.26 

c) Excess interest spread (EIS) receivable  1,210.35  -   

Less: Impairment loss allowance  0.89  0.20 

Total 

8. Current tax assets (net)

Particulars
 As at   As at  

Current tax assets (net)  129.40  222.90 

Net of provision for income tax INR 3,578.65 lakh (As at March 31, 2023 - INR 1,568.75 
lakh)

Total  222.90

9. Deferred tax assets / liabilities (net)

Particulars
 As at   As at  

A.

a) Effective interest rate (EIR) impact on Borrowings and Loans  380.39  226.32 

b) EIS on DA transaction  304.62  -   

 226.32 

a) Difference between WDV as per books and tax books  2.68  10.49 

b) Employee share-based payments  94.71  88.47 

c) Provision for Gratuity  44.02  29.25 

d) Provision for Compensated absences  20.19  14.40 

e)  33.25  -   

f) Unwinding of discount on security deposit and prepaid rent expenses  0.45  0.22 

g) Leases  34.38  19.18 

h) Impairment loss allowance  331.08  270.84 

 560.76  432.85 

 206.53 

B. For yearly movement in balances of deferred tax assets/( liabilities) refer Note no. - 30.3
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Notes to the �nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

10. Property, plant and equipment, Right-of-use assets & Intangible assets

Particulars

 Property, plant and equipment assets 

Land* Computer 
Hardware Equipment 

Furniture 
and 

Fixtures

Leasehold 
Improvements  Total 

 Premises  Total Total
F = 

 A. Gross carrying amount

 5.25  239.45  28.38  638.38  638.38 

Addition  -    148.94  11.15  30.87  125.96  316.92  1,373.39  1,373.39  148.94  148.94 

Disposal  -    26.02  0.35  0.85  70.10  97.32  15.01  15.01  -    -   

 5.25  362.37  358.96  358.96 

Addition  -    115.87  9.29  0.71  -    125.87  -    -    432.52  432.52 

Disposal  -    0.66  1.02  -   -  1.68  -    -    -    -   

 5.25  477.58  47.45  48.86 

 B. Accumulated Depreciation 

 -    20.29  63.42  255.93  425.64  425.64 

Depreciation / Amortisation 
expense

 -    68.14  5.21  3.68  18.13  95.16  265.43  265.43  74.00  74.00 

Disposal  -    25.25  0.29  0.35  70.10  95.99  11.88  11.88  -    -   

 -   

Depreciation / Amortisation 
expense

 -    91.88  6.76  6.68  25.25  130.57  314.21  314.21  112.07  112.07 

Disposal  -    0.37  1.02  -    -    1.39  -    -    -    -   

 -    295.67  30.95  20.96  36.70  384.28  993.40  993.40  307.76  307.76 

C.

 5.25  33.87 

 5.25  27.90  89.26  320.82  483.72  483.72 

D.
For the  year ended  For the  year ended 

a)   Depreciation on property, plant and equipments  130.57  95.16 

b)  Depreciation on right-of-use assets  314.21  265.43 

c)  Amortisation of intangible assets  112.07  74.00 

Total  556.85  434.59 

 Note * : For previous year pari passu charge over the immovable property of the Company towards the Listed Non convertible 
debentures issued under Debenture Trust Deed dated August 27, 2020. 

 As on March 31, 2024, there is no charge on immovable property as the NCD's are repaid during the current year.

 The company had no acquisitions through business combinations. Further, no revaluation (upwards or downwards) has been 
made.

 Title deeds of all immovable properties are held in the name of company.

 No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
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Notes to the �nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

11. Intangible assets under development

Particulars
 As at   As at  

Softwares  89.68  153.47 

Total  89.68 

Particulars
 Amount in intangible asset under  

 Total 
Projects in progress  89.68  -    89.68 

Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -   

Total  89.68  -    89.68 

Particulars
 Amount in intangible asset under  

 Total 

Projects in progress  30.24  123.23  153.47 

Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -   

Total  30.24 

 Note - There were no intangible assets under development whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to 
its original plan.

12. Other non �nancial assets

Particulars
 As at   As at  

Unsecured, considered good

a)  Prepaid expenses  93.82  101.95 

b)  Advances to vendors  320.74  182.75 

Total  284.70

13. Derivative �nancial instruments

held include foreign exchange forward contracts.

 These derivative transactions are done for hedging purpose and not for trading or speculative purpose.

Particulars Notional  
amount

Fair value 
liabilities

Notional  
amount

Fair value 
liabilities

Part I
(i)  Currency derivatives

 Forward contracts  5,736.92  132.13  -    -   

Total Derivative Financial Instruments  5,736.92  -    -   

Particulars Notional  
amount

Fair value 
liabilities

Notional  
amount

Fair value 
liabilities

Part II
(i)  Undesignated Derivatives  5,736.92  132.13  -    -   

Total Derivative Financial Instruments  5,736.92  -    -  

  For foreign currency risk refer Note no. - 42.C
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Notes to the �nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

14. Debt securities

Particulars
 As at   As at  

a) Non convertible debentures (listed, secured, fully paid and privately placed)  24,134.51  28,218.66 

b) Commercial Paper  -    1,490.63 

Total  29,709.29 

i) Debt securities in India  24,134.51  29,709.29 

ii) Debt securities outside India  -    -   

Total  29,709.29

 

Particulars  Repayment Terms 
Maturity 

Date
Amount

Redemption 
value

Amount
Redemption 

value

 A.   Listed and Secured Non 
Convertible Debentures  

Six Equal Half Yearly 
Instalments

June 23,  
2023

 -    -    416.67  1.67 

(Refer Note-iv)
Bullet repayment on 

maturity
June 01,  

2023
 -    -    1,000.00  10.00 

(Refer Note-iv)
Bullet repayment on 

maturity
June 26,  

2023
 -    -    3,500.00  10.00 

(Refer Note-iv)
Bullet repayment on 

maturity
July 30,  

2023
 -    -    2,500.00  10.00 

Bullet repayment on 
maturity

August 24, 
2023

 -    -    3,300.00  10.00 

Bullet repayment on 
maturity

September 
16, 2023

 -    -    800.00  1.00 

 In four equal 
instalments

November 
17, 2023

 -    -    5,000.00  1.00 

 
instalments

November 
18, 2023

 -    -    3,500.00  1.00 

Bullet repayment on 
maturity

September 
22, 2024

 5,000.00  1.00  5,000.00  1.00 

 
(3 Month T-Bill + Spread)

Eight Equal Quarterly 
Instalments

October 3, 
2024

 937.50  1.00  2,187.50  1.00 

Bullet repayment on 
maturity

November 
29, 2026

 7,500.00  1.00  -    -   

Bullet repayment on 
maturity

December 
18, 2026

 5,000.00  1.00  -    -   

Bullet repayment on 
maturity

February 21, 
2027

 5,000.00  1.00  -    -   

 23,437.50 

B.  Commercial Paper

and unlisted 
Bullet repayment on 

maturity
April 28,  

2023
 -    -    1,500.00  5.00 

 -   
 23,437.50 

Less: Effective interest rate (EIR) 
impact

 (347.17)  (136.29)

Add: Interest accrued  1,044.18  1,141.41 

Total  29,709.29 

 * The Non Convertible Debentures have been repurchased during Financial Year 2023-24.     
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tenure of the debentures. The embedded value of the derivative is negligible and is likely to remain negligible throughout 

 iii) All secured Non Convertible Debentures are secured by way of Exclusive charge against loan receivables.

 iv) The Listed Non Convertible debentures issued under Debenture Trust Deed dated August 27, 2020 are also secured by 
pari passu charge over the immovable property of the Company.

obtained.

 vii) Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in 
agreement with books of accounts.

15. Borrowings (Other than debt securities)

Particulars
 As at   As at  

I a) Term Loans (Secured) (Refer Note 15.2 and 15.5)

i)  from banks  1,80,862.82  99,283.06 

ii)  from others  17,199.53  8,750.94 

b) Loans repayable on demand from banks (Secured) (Refer Note 15.3 and 15.5)  4,952.81  3,476.32 

c) Borrowings from securitisation / Payable for securitisation (Refer Note 15.4 
and 15.5)

 7,369.74  4,773.09 

Total

II

i) Borrowings in India 2,10,384.90 1,16,283.41

ii) Borrowings outside India  -    -   

Total 2,10,384.90 1,16,283.41

Particulars
 As at   As at  

Repayable within 1 year  51,600.40  26,297.19 

Repayable within 1 year to 3 years  98,078.03  54,878.87 

Repayable after 3 years  49,506.55  27,559.29 

Total  Principal

Add: Interest accrued but not due  231.45  197.15 

Add/(less): Effective interest rate (EIR) impact  (1,354.08)  (898.50)

Total 

 

  Security for term loans is exclusive charge against the education loan receivables and/or cash and cash equivalents/
investments.

 The borrowings have not been guaranteed by directors or others. Also there is no default in repayment of borrowing and 
interest on bank term loans.

 The Company has borrowed foreign currency term loan amounting USD 59.97 lakhs in FY 2023-24. These were borrowed for 
onward lending of education loans. The repayments of borrowing including interest is hedged through forward contracts.
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Particulars
 As at   As at  

Working capital demand loans 
(Bullet repayment on maturity)

 4,999.99  3,499.99 

Add: Interest accrued but not due  1.14  0.83 

Add/(less): Effective interest rate (EIR) impact  (48.32)  (24.50)

Total  3,476.32

  

   Loans Repayable on Demand are secured against advances.

 

Particulars
 As at   As at  

Repayable within 1 year  1,917.41  1,592.07 

Repayable within 1 year to 3 years  3,813.63  2,747.35 

Repayable after 3 years  1,610.67  429.46 

Total  4,768.88 

Add: Interest accrued but not due  38.29  24.33 

Add/(less): Effective interest rate (EIR) impact  (10.26)  (20.12)

Total  7,369.74  4,773.09

  

  

 

taken.

agreement with books of accounts.

16. Other �nancial liabilities

Particulars
 As at   As at  

 8.20  43.17 

Advances received from customers (Refer Note below)  438.54  702.49 

Provision for expenses  1,125.88  961.49 

Total 

 Note - Advance received from customers includes amounts received towards advance instalments and Debt Service Reserve 
Account (DSRA).

17. Provisions

Particulars
 As at   As at  

i) Gratuity (Refer Note 39.B)  174.89  116.23 

ii) Compensated absences  80.21  57.21 

Total 
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18. Other non-�nancial liabilities

Particulars
 As at   As at  

Income received in advance  195.46  174.93 

Statutory dues payable  168.62  133.97 

Total  364.08  308.90 

19A Equity share capital

Particulars
 Amount  Amount 

Share capital authorised, issued, 
subscribed and paid up

Equity Shares of INR 10 each  1,65,00,00,000  1,65,000.00  2,00,00,00,000  2,00,000.00 

 2,00,00,00,000  2,00,000.00 

Equity Shares of INR 10 each  37,69,91,150  37,699.11  37,62,66,135  37,626.61 

and share capital 

Outstanding at the beginning of year  37,62,66,135  37,626.61  34,94,44,987  34,944.50 

Add: Shares issued during the year  7,25,015  72.50  2,68,21,148  2,682.11 

Private Placement  25,015  2.50  2,32,02,982  2,320.30 

ESOPs  7,00,000  70.00  9,51,500  95.15 

Conversion from OCPS into equity shares  -    -    26,66,666  266.67 

 72.50 

 % Holding  % Holding 
Equity Shares

Shareholder holding more than 5% shares 

Balrampur Chini Mills Limited  16,52,92,000  16,52,92,000 

Elme Advisors LLP  16,52,92,000  16,52,92,000 

ICICI Bank Limited  3,63,23,820  3,63,23,820 

Promoter's Name- Elme Advisors LLP

At the beginning of the year  16,52,92,000  15,50,00,000 

Change during  the year  -    1,02,92,000 

At the end of the year  16,52,92,000  16,52,92,000 

  

  Change in percentage of total shares held by promoters is due to the increase in total issued equity share capital of the 
Company.

  There were no restatement in the balances of share held at the beginning of the year on account of prior period error.
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  The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. The dividend, if any proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the 
Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution 
of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder.

  Balrampur Chini Mills Limited and Elme Advisors LLP, together referred to as Majority Shareholders shall not Transfer, any 

of each Key Investor, where such transfer results in the aggregate equity shareholding of the Majority Shareholders and 
Key Investor means each 

Investor who holds Securities representing equal to or more than 7.5% of the Share Capital at the relevant time. 

 

lakhs (divided into Rs.165,000 lakhs Equity Share Capital and Rs.35,800 lakhs Preference Share Capital from Rs. 200,000 
lakhs Equity Share Capital and Rs.800 lakhs Preference Share Capital).  (Previous year ended on March 31, 2023 - Nil)

 
preceding the reporting date: Nil  

  Aggregate number and class of share allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares during the period of five years 
immediately preceding the reporting date: Nil 

 
date: Nil     

  Dividend Payment

  No dividend is paid during the year or recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended as on March 31, 2024. 
(Previous year- Nil)    

  Shares reserved for issue under options

  Refer Note 40 for details of shares to be issued under the Employee Stock Option Plan.

19B Instruments entirely equity in nature

Particulars
 Amount  Amount 

Share capital authorised, issued, 
subscribed and paid up

Preference Shares of INR 10 each  35,80,00,000  35,800.00  80,00,000  800.00 

 35,80,00,000  35,800.00  80,00,000  800.00 

Compulsorily convertible preference share 
(CCPS) of INR 10 each

 11,31,34,145  11,313.41  -    -   

 -    -   

and share capital 

Preference Shares - Series A

Outstanding at the beginning of year  -    -    -    -   

Add: Shares issued during the year  11,31,34,145  11,313.41  -    -   

 -    -   

Private Placement  11,31,34,145  11,313.41  -    -   

 -    -   
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 % Holding  % Holding 

Shares 
Tata Capital Growth Fund II  5,17,69,795  -    -   

Xponentia Opportunities Fund-II  2,64,61,876  -    -   

Trifecta Leaders Fund-I  2,55,23,712  -    -   

ICICI Bank Limited  93,78,762  -    -   

 

and when the dividend is declared by the Board.

  2.  In the event of winding up of the Company, the holders of CCPS shall participate in the proceeds of such winding up 
with the holders of Equity Shares.

  3.  The holder of CCPS shall carry same voting rights on an as if converted basis and the provision under section 47 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 shall not apply.

applicable conditions.

  Details of promoter's preference shareholding: Nil

 Aggregate number of preference shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years 
immediately preceding the reporting date: Nil

 Aggregate number and class of share allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares during the period of five years 
immediately preceding the reporting date: Nil

 
date: Nil  

 Dividend Payment

  No dividend is paid during the year or recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended as on March 31, 2024. 
(Previous year- Nil)

20. Other equity

Particulars
As at  As at  

a) Securities premium  38,480.66  3,826.92 

b) Statutory reserve  2,532.60  1,152.28 

c)  -    -   

d) Employee stock options  376.31  351.53 

e) Retained earnings  8,475.67  2,903.95 

f) Other comprehensive income  (47.72)  (27.44)

Total  8,207.24

  

 a. Securities premium reserve

  Securities premium account is used to record the premium on issue of shares and utilisation towards share issue 
expenses.    

 b. Statutory reserve

  Statutory Reserve: As per Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 ("The RBI Act"), the Company is 

  Equity component of compound financial instrument account represents the equity component of an Optionally 
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 d. Employee stock options

  Share options outstanding reserve account is used to record the value of equity settled share based payment transactions 
with the employees under its employee share options payment plan.

 e. Retained Earnings

  Retained earnings comprises of the Company’s undistributed earnings after taxes. 

 

Particulars
As at  As at  

Securities premium

Opening balance  3,826.92  2,203.11 

Add : Premium received on issue of shares  35,679.08  1,625.02 

Less: Issuance cost on issue of shares  (1,025.34)  (1.21)

Closing Balance  38,480.66  3,826.92 

Statutory reserve

Opening balance  1,152.28  639.89 

Add : Transfer from retained earnings*  1,380.32  512.39 

Closing Balance  2,532.60 

Opening balance  -    2.93 

Add: Money called up and paid on OCPS  -    263.73 

Less : Converted to Equity shares  -    (266.66)

Closing Balance  -    -   

Employee stock options

Opening balance  351.53  448.54 

Add : Additions during the year  54.95  65.31 

Less: Trf to retained earnings  (30.17)  (162.32)

Closing Balance

Retained Earnings

Opening balance  2,903.95  679.28 

 6,921.87  2,574.74 

Add: Trf from Employee stock options  30.17  162.32 

 9,855.99 

Transfer to statutory reserve*  1,380.32  512.39 

Closing Balance  8,475.67  2,903.95 

Opening balance  (27.44)  (14.64)

 (20.28)  (12.80)

Closing Balance

 8,207.24 

 * - 
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21. Interest income

Particulars
For the year ended For the year ended 

Interest on loans  31,213.47  16,795.38 

Interest on deposits with banks  762.25  181.33 

Total 

22. Fees and commission income

Particulars
For the year ended For the year ended 

Service income  143.85  142.87 

Commission income  1,701.19  262.33 

Total  405.20

Set out below is the revenue from contracts with customers and reconciliation to 

Fees and commission income  1,845.04  405.20 

 405.20 

Geographical Markets

India  1,845.04  405.20 

Outside India  -    -   

 405.20 

Services transferred at a point in time  1,845.04  405.20 

Services transferred over time  -    -   

 405.20 

Contract Balance

Trade Receivables  81.95  33.96 

 No revenue from transactions with a single external customer amounted to 10 percent or more of the Company’s total revenue 
in year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

23. Net gain on fair value changes

Particulars
For the year ended For the year ended 

 Investments  966.94  444.19 

 Derivatives  (132.13)  -   

Total 

Realised  966.94  444.19 

Unrealised  (132.13)  -   

Total 
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24. Net gain on derecognition of �nancial instruments under amortised cost category

Particulars
For the year ended For the year ended 

Assignment / transfer of loans  1,012.58  -   

Total  -   

25. Other income

Particulars
For the year ended For the year ended 

Fee income and other charges  1,045.00  1,249.50 

Unwinding of discount on security deposits  8.96  7.97 

Net loss on foreign currency transaction  -    (0.61)

Miscellaneous income  10.74  0.40 

Total

26. Finance costs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

a) Interest on borrowings (other than debt securities)  16,849.17  6,889.24 

b) Interest on debt securities  2,271.80  2,433.19 

c) Interest - lease liabilities  108.43  78.41 

d) Other interest expense  9.86  8.44 

e) Other Borrowing costs  288.85  138.37 

Total  9,547.65

27. Impairment on �nancial instruments

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

i) On Financial assets measured at amortised cost

a) Loans  510.33  454.22 

b) Fixed deposits  1.87  1.03 

c) Others  0.72  0.11 

ii) Write off of loans  165.87  -   

Total  678.79  455.36 

28. Employee bene�ts expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

a) Salaries, bonus and allowances  3,792.71  2,940.40 

b) Contribution to provident and other funds  156.11  112.52 

c) Gratuity expense (Refer Note - 39)  31.55  16.54 

d) Compensated absences (Refer Note - 39)  23.00  12.83 

e) Share based payments to employees (Refer Note - 40)  54.95  65.31 

f) Staff welfare  117.83  104.07 

Total
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29. Other expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

a) Advertisement and publicity  150.02  102.49 

b) Auditor's fees and expenses (Refer note below)  40.54  38.36 

c) Business sourcing expenses  516.47  392.84 

d) Communication cost /IT expenses  672.47  607.58 

e) Directors fees, allowances  19.62  11.77 

f) Expenditure towards corporate social responsibility (Refer note 37)  42.00  25.43 

g) Legal and professional fees  648.26  372.68 

h)  (0.26)  (1.51)

i) Printing and stationery  47.87  40.62 

j) Rates, duties and taxes  7.71  6.47 

k) Rent (net of discount concession received)  130.81  88.35 

l) Repairs and maintenance  140.07  101.44 

m) Travelling and conveyance  99.03  132.19 

n) Miscellaneous expenses  8.97  5.43 

Total  2,523.58 

29.1 Auditors' fees and expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

Payments to auditor

a) Audit fees  29.00  24.50 

b)  2.00  2.00 

c)  3.50  6.00 

d) Other services  2.00  2.00 

e) Out of pocket expenses  0.75  0.69 

f) GST on above  3.29  3.17 

Total  40.54  38.36

30. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes”

Particulars
For the  

year ended  
For the  

year ended  

I.

(i)

Current income tax expense  2,012.71  782.68 

(Tax income) / tax expense in respect of earlier years  (2.81)  9.28 

(ii)

Tax expense on origination and reversal of temporary differences  337.60  103.25 

 2,347.50 

II.

 (6.82)  (4.31)

 The Company has elected to exercise the option permitted under Section 115BAA of the income-tax Act, 1961, as introduced 
by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has recognised provision for income tax for 
the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023. 
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 A reconciliation of income tax provision to the amount computed by applying statutory income tax rate to the income before 
taxes is summarised below:

Particulars
For the  

year ended  
For the  

year ended  

(a)  9,269.37  3,469.95 

(b) Corporate tax rate as per Income tax Act, 1961

(c)  2,332.92  873.32 

(d) Tax impact due to

(i) Adjustment of deferred tax and current tax of prior periods  (2.81)  9.28 

(ii) CSR expenses  10.57  6.40 

(iii) Other amounts  7.59  1.90 

(e)  2,341.45  886.59 

(f) Income tax expense reported in the OCI section  6.82  4.31 

(g)  2,348.27  890.90 

(h) 25.33% 25.67%

 

Particulars  As at   As at  

 i) Effective interest rate (EIR) impact on Borrowings and Loans  (226.32)  (154.07)  (380.39)

ii) EIS on DA transaction  -    (304.62)  (304.62)

 iii) Depreciation and amortisation  10.49  (7.81)  2.68 

 iv) Employee share-based payments  88.47  6.24  94.71 

 v) Impairment loss allowance  270.84  60.24  331.08 

 vi) Provision for Gratuity  29.25  14.77  44.02 

 vii) Provision for Compensated absences  14.40  5.79  20.19 

viii) Unwinding of discount on security deposit and prepaid rent 
expenses

 0.22  0.23  0.45 

 ix) Leases  19.18  15.20  34.38 

 x)  -    33.25  33.25 

 Total  206.53 

 

Particulars  As at   As at  

 i) Effective interest rate (EIR) impact on Borrowings and Loans  (50.02)  (176.30)  (226.32)

 ii) Depreciation and amortisation  8.66  1.83  10.49 

 iii) Employee share-based payments  112.89  (24.42)  88.47 

 iv) Impairment loss allowance  197.21  73.63  270.84 

 v) Provision for Gratuity  20.78  8.47  29.25 

 vi) Provision for Compensated absences  11.17  3.23  14.40 

 vii) Unwinding of discount on security deposit and prepaid rent 
expenses

 0.10  0.12  0.22 

viii) Leases  4.69  14.49  19.18 

 Total  305.48  206.53

30.4 Tax losses

 Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised.
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31. Leases
 The Company has leases for office building and network assets, with the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-

recognises right-of-use assets (ROU) and lease liabilities for leases i.e. these leases are on the balance sheet. Lease liabilities 
are measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.

Particulars  As at   As at  

Amount recognised in balance sheet

a)  Right-of-use assets  1,003.36  1,317.57 

b)  Lease Liabilities  1,139.96  1,393.79 

Opening Balance  1,393.79  231.38 

Add: Lease liabilities recognised during the year  -    1,373.39 

Less: Lease liabilities written off during the year  -    (3.61)

Add: Interest accrued on lease liabilities  108.43  78.41 

Less: Lease payments  (362.26)  (285.78)

Less than one year  364.71  362.26 

 955.48  1,291.22 

 7.33  36.29 

Total undiscounted lease liabilities

Particulars
For the  

year ended 
For the  

year ended 

(a)  Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets  (included in Depreciation note - 10)  314.21  265.43 

 108.43  78.41 

(c)  Expense relating to short-term leases  61.34  43.08 

Total  483.98  386.92 

 -    1,373.39 

 362.26  285.78

32. Earning per Share

Particulars
For the  

year ended 
For the  

year ended 

Basic earning per share

a)  6,921.87  2,574.74 

b)  Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding during the year for Basic EPS  4,371.82  3,613.19 

c)  Nominal value of equity shares (INR per share)  10.00  10.00 

d)  Basic earnings per share (EPS) (INR per share)  1.58  0.71 

Diluted earning per share

e)  6,921.87  2,574.74 

f)  Weighted average no. of potential equity shares on account of employee stock 
options  and CCPS 

 674.70  31.16 

g)  Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding during the year for diluted 
EPS (b+f) 

 5,046.52  3,644.35 

h)  Nominal value of equity shares (INR per share)  10.00  10.00 

i)  Diluted earnings per share (EPS) (INR per share)  1.37  0.71



90

Notes to the �nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

equity share outstanding during the year.

equity share outstanding during the period adjusted for the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on 
conversion of all the dilutive potential equity share into equity share.

33. Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars  As at   As at  

A. Contingent liabilities

i) Credit enhancement provided by the Company for the loans under securitisation 
arrangements (including cash collaterals)

 1,406.34  762.34 

ii) Demand of income tax FY 2017-18 (AY 2018-19)  -    1.37 

B. Capital commitments

i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 
not provided for

73.96  17.04 

ii) Undisbursed commitments in respect of the Education loan agreements *  43,159.95  31,609.41 

* The Company has unconditional rights under the loan agreements to cancel these commitments at any time.

C. Company does not have any litigations which are pending against the company as of March 31, 2024. (Previous year - Nil)

34. The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the 
year end, the Company has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law/ accounting standards for 
material foreseeable losses on such long term contracts has been made in the books of accounts. 

35. Trade payables disclosures  
 

  Disclosure pertaining to Micro and Small Enterprises is as under - The details of amounts outstanding together with 
interest paid /payable to Micro and Small enterprises based on information available with the Company is as under:

Particulars
 As at   As at  

i) Amounts outstanding but not due as at March 31,  -    -   

ii) Amounts due but unpaid as at March 31,  -    -   

iii) Amounts paid after appointed date during the year  -    -   

iv) Amount of interest accrued and unpaid as at March 31,  -    -   

v) Amount of estimated interest due and payable for the period from March 31, 
to actual date of payment or Board meeting date (whichever is earlier)

 -    -   

vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years

 -    -  

 

  #There are no trade payables as on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 and hence ageing schedule is not applicable.

36. Segment Reporting  
 Since the Company operates in one segment namely 'Education Loans' and it provides service facilities in India, there are no 

separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. Thus, the segment revenue, total carrying amount of 
segment assets, total carrying amount of segment liabilities, total cost incurred to acquire segment assets, total amount of 

ended March 31, 2024. The Company does not have any assets and revenue outside India. Currently, there is no single external 

37. Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility
 a)  Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year is INR 41.96 lakh (previous year-INR 25.43 lakh). The 

Board has approved a spent of INR 41.96 Lakh through its meeting held dated May 02, 2023.
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 b) The details of amounts spent towards corporate social responsibility are as under:

Particulars
For the  

year ended 
For the  

year ended 

Amount required to be spent by the company during the year  -    -   

Amount of expenditure incurred-related parties  -    -   

Amount of expenditure incurred-other than related parties  -    -   

 Amount of expenditure incurred-Ongoing projects  -    -   

 Amount of expenditure incurred-Other than Ongoing projects  -    -   

Excess at the end of the year  -    -   

Total of previous years shortfall  -    -   

Reason for shortfall  Not applicable  Not applicable 

Amount required to be spent by the company during the year  41.96  25.43 

Amount of expenditure incurred-related parties  -    -   

Amount of expenditure incurred-other than related parties  42.00  25.43 

 Amount of expenditure incurred-Ongoing projects  -    -   

 Amount of expenditure incurred-Other than Ongoing projects  42.00  25.43 

Excess at the end of the year  0.04  -   

Total of previous years shortfall  -    -   

Reason for shortfall  Not applicable  Not applicable 

  During the current year and the previous year, the Company incurred Corporate Social Responsibilities expenditure 
towards education for deaf children and scholarship program which included activities like organize mass awareness 
programme, capacity development training, organize World Deaf Day Mela / workshops etc. and to provide financial 
assistance by way of educational scholarship to covid affected students who have lost their parents or whose family 
members have lost their employment. 

  There were no unspent Corporate Social Responsibilities expenditure during FY 2023-24. (Previous year-Nil)

  Details of excess CSR expenditure under section 135(5) of the Act-

Balance excess spent as at Amount required to be 
spent during the year

Amount spent during the 
year

 Balance excess spent as at 

 -    41.96  42.00  (0.04)

Balance excess spent as at Amount required to be 
spent during the year

Amount spent during the 
year

 Balance excess spent as at 

 -    25.43  25.43  -   

  The company do not intends to carry forward excess amount spent of FY 2023-24 to subsequent financial years and 
accordingly no assets are created for excess amount spent.

38. Related Party Disclosure  

 As per the requirement of Ind AS 24, on related party disclosures, the name of the related parties with the description of the 

follows :     

   

 

   Balrampur Chini Mills Ltd.

   Elme Advisors LLP   
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  Akash Bhanshali, Director  

  Manish Chokhani, Independent Director

  Gautam Jain, Director

  Ashwin Jain, Director

  Chinnathambi Ilango, Independent Director

  Vivek Saraogi, Director

  Deo Shankar Tripathi, Independent Director

  Akhil Awasthi, Nominee Director (w.e.f July 19, 2023)

  Lavanya Ashok , Nominee Director (w.e.f December 20, 2023)

  Perumal Srinivasan Nominee Director (w.e.f December 20, 2023)

38.2 Transactions with Related parties during the year

No.
 Year Ended   Year Ended  

Issue of equity shares  
(incl. securities premium)

 Balrampur Chini Mills Limited  -    1,749.64 

 Elme Advisors LLP  -    1,749.64 

 Neeraj Saxena ^    -    326.86 

2 Managerial Remuneration*

 Neeraj Saxena  249.42  376.79 

Employee Stock Option#  Neeraj Saxena  -    14.39 

3 Sitting Fees  Manish Chokhani  5.60  5.40 

 Chinnathambi Ilango  5.80  4.60 

 Deo Shankar Tripathi  6.60  0.80 

4 Advances given to Director

 Ashwin Jain **  Advances given  40.88  -   

 Processing fees received  0.40  -   

 Interest income  3.58  -   

 Principal received  1.76  -   

 Interest received  3.32  - 

 ^ includes conversion of OCPS to Equity shares. The Company received INR 263.73 lakh towards the partly paid OCPS during 
the previous year.

 * Incentives / bonus / gratuity are considered on payment basis and inclusive of variable pay.

 # OCPS are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share based payments amounting to INR 15.63 lakh during the previous 
year.

 ** Mr. Ashwin Jain is given the loan of INR 40.88 lakhs in the capacity as co-borrower. Mr. Jai Ashwin Jain being the son of the 
director is the borrower to this loan. Also, Mrs. Bhavana Jain (wife of the director) is co-borrower to this transaction.

No.
 Year Ended   Year Ended  

Sitting Fees  Manish Chokhani  -    0.40 

 Chinnathambi Ilango  -    0.40 

 Deo Shankar Tripathi  -    0.40 

2 Loans outstanding ^  Ashwin Jain  39.12  -   

3 Interest accrued but not due  Ashwin Jain  0.26  -  

 ^ Maximum amount outstanding during the year was INR 41.27 lakhs (Previous year - Nil)

39. Employee bene�ts - Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 'Employee Bene�ts'
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contribution plans which are included under contribution to provident and other funds: 

Particulars
 Year Ended  Year Ended 

Provident fund  156.11  112.52

 I

  Gratuity Disclosure Statement as Per Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind AS 19) as below.

Particulars
Year ended  Year ended  

 82.58 
Current Service Cost  28.21  23.86 

Interest Expense  8.47  5.29 

Past service cost  (5.13)  (12.61)

Actuarial (Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions  -    (4.31)

 0.77  13.24 

Experience (gains)/losses  26.34  8.18 

 -    -   

 Expected return on Plan Assets  -    -   

 Contributions  -    -   

 -    -   

 Actuarial Gain (loss) on plan assets  -    -   

 -    -   

Particulars
As at As at 

 174.89  116.23 

Fair value of plan assets  -    -   

Net liability

Particulars
Year ended  Year ended  

Service Cost

 Current service cost  28.21  23.86 

 Past service cost  (5.13)  (12.61)

Total Service cost (i)  23.08 
Net interest cost

 Interest expense on DBO  8.47  5.29 

 Interest expense / (income) on plan assets  -    -   

Total Interest cost (ii)  8.47  5.29 

Total remeasurement in other comprehensive income (OCI) (iv)  27.11  17.11

loss and OCI
 58.66  33.65 
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conditions at the valuation date.

Particulars
 As at   As at  

Discount rate

Rate of Salary Increase next year

Rate of Salary Increase post next year

Rate of employee turnover

Mortality rate during employment Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2012-14) Urban

Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2012-14) Urban

  

Particulars
 As at   As at  

i) Insurer managed funds  -    -   

ii) Cash  -    -   

  

% Rate  Amount % Rate  Amount 

i) Impact of change in discount rate  (5.65)  (3.73)

ii) Impact of change in salary growth rate  5.17  3.55 

iii) Impact of change in employee attrition rate  (1.78)  (1.11)

i) Impact of change in discount rate  6.09  4.02 

ii) Impact of change in salary growth rate  (4.97)  (3.41)

iii) Impact of change in employee attrition rate  1.85  1.15 

   The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions 
occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

   The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit 
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the 
assumptions may be correlated.

been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method 

  

Particulars
 As at   As at  

i)  1st Following Year  30.90  21.41 

ii)  2nd Following Year  29.56  19.83 

iii)  3rd Following Year  26.84  17.94 

iv)  4th Following Year  25.36  16.29 

v)  5th Following Year  23.17  15.29 

vi)  Sum of  Years 6 to 10  67.52  44.73 

vii)  Sum of Years 11 and above  28.29  19.24
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    A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government Security Rate will increase the present 
value of the liability requiring higher provision.

   
members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

    
pay-out based on pay as you go basis from own funds.

   
does not have any longevity risk.  

 II Accumulated Compensated Absences

  The Company provides for accumulated compensated absences as at the balance sheet date on the basis of actuarial 
valuation. The Company recognised INR 23 Lakhs (previous year INR 12.83 Lakhs) for compensated absences in the 

40. Share based payment arrangement (Employee Stock Option Plan)
 The Company's Employee Stock Option Scheme 2017 (ESOP 2017) represents an equity settled option scheme that the 
Company has issued to its employees. The Plan provides that the Company's employees are granted an option to acquire equity 
shares of the Company that vest in a graded manner that are subject to satisfaction of the vesting conditions like continuous 
service, performance conditions. Once vested, the options may be exercised within a period of 10 years.

 The fair value of the options at grant date is determined using Black Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise price, 
the term of the option, the share price at the grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying shares, the expected 
dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the options. The compensation costs, if any, is amortised on a 
straight line basis.

 During the year, the Company granted stock options to employees under the ESOP 2017 Plan where the exercise price was 
linked to the fair value of shares on the date of the grant.

40.02

Particulars Weighted 
average 

exercise price

Weighted 
average  

exercise price
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year*  1,02,14,000  11.74  1,42,22,166  11.09 

Granted  -    -    8,50,500  15.24 

Exercised  (7,00,000)  10.00  (36,18,166)  10.02 

Forfeited/ Cancelled/ Lapsed/ Expired  (25,000)  15.00  (12,40,500)  11.75 

 94,89,000 
Options exercisable at the end of the year  68,29,500  10.60  41,36,000 10.02

 * This includes OCPS which has been accounted as per Ind AS 102

40.03  Vesting period 

Particulars
As at  As at  

3 - 4 years from grant date  42,57,400  42,73,900 

4 - 5 years from grant date  30,23,100  33,57,600 

5 - 6 years from grant date  21,57,500  25,31,500 

6 - 7 years from grant date  51,000  51,000 

Total  94,89,000 

 Weighted average contractual life of options remaining outstanding at end of year is 4.36 years (Previous year 4.40 years).
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40.04 Fair value options

 The fair value of options have been estimated as on the date of the grant using "Black Scholes" model. The key assumptions 
used in the model for calculating the fair value as on the date of grant are as follows: 

Grant Date ESOP 2017

Share price 10

Exercise price Fair value on date of grant

Risk-free interest rate

Expected life of the option 3 years to 7 years

Expiry Date (from vesting date) 10 years

Expected volatility

Expected dividend yield 

Fair Value of Options 2.94 to 8.97

 The expected life of the share option is based on the management's current expectations and not necessarily indicative 
of exercise pattern that may occur. The volatility of the options is based on the historical volatility of listed comparable 
companies.     

40.05

Particulars
 For the period 

ended  
 For the period 

ended  

 54.95  65.31 

41. Fair Value Measurement     

If no market prices were available, the fair values for loans/receivables and liabilities were calculated by discounting using a 
maturity-matched discount rate appropriate to the risk.  

Particulars
 At Amortised 

cost 
 FVTPL  Total carrying 

Value 
 Total Fair 

value 
 Financial Assets 
1 Cash and cash equivalents  37,273.24  -    -    37,273.24  37,273.24 

2 Other Bank balances  9,466.09  -    -    9,466.09  9,466.09 

3 Trade receivables  415.59  -    -    415.59  415.59 

4 Loans  2,85,938.98  -    -    2,85,938.98  2,85,938.98 

5  1,402.15  -    -    1,402.15  1,402.15 

Total  3,34,496.05  -    -    3,34,496.05  3,34,496.05 
 Financial Liabilities 
1  -    132.13  -    132.13  132.13 

2 Debt securities (Listed)  24,134.51  -    -    24,134.51  24,506.02 

3 Borrowings (other than debt 
securities)

 2,10,384.90  -    -    2,10,384.90  2,10,501.98 

4 Lease liabilities  1,139.96  -    -    1,139.96  1,139.96 

5  1,572.62  -    -    1,572.62  1,572.62 

Total  -   
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Particulars
 At Amortised 

cost 
 FVTPL  Total carrying 

Value 
 Total Fair 

value 
 Financial Assets 
1 Cash and cash equivalents  23,409.91  -    -    23,409.91  23,409.91 

2 Other Bank balances  1,318.66  -    -    1,318.66  1,318.66 

3 Trade receivables  183.80  -    -    183.80  183.80 

4 Loans  1,67,654.93  -    -    1,67,654.93  1,67,654.93 

5  168.28  168.28  168.28 

Total  -    -   
 Financial Liabilities 
1 Debt securities (Listed)  29,709.29  -    -    29,709.29  29,744.67 

2 Borrowings (other than debt securities)  1,16,283.41  -    -    1,16,283.41  1,16,322.09 

3 Lease liabilities  1,393.79  -    -    1,393.79  1,393.79 

4  1,707.15  -    -    1,707.15  1,707.15 

Total  -    -   

valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities 
(level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).

  Financial instruments measured using quoted prices and that are traded in active market are categorized under level 1.  

issuer.

are required to reflect the difference between the instruments. Loans and Listed Non Convertible debentures have been 
included in level 3 category.

instruments include cash in hand and bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, overdraft facility payable on demand 

are receivable or payable on demand.

assets and liabilities.

 The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The Board / Audit 

 The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial assets by valuation 
technique:

 

  The fair values of investments in mutual funds is based on the net asset value (‘NAV’) as stated by the issuers of these 
mutual fund units in the published statements as at Balance Sheet date. NAV represents the price at which the issuer will 
issue further units of mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors.

fair valuation is derived using a combination of interpolated risk-free interest rates and credit-spreads of the Company as 
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The discount factor used for fair valuation is derived using a combination of interpolated risk-free interest rates and credit-
spreads of the Company as on valuation date. Input data used to carry out the fair valuation covers portfolio data and expected 

 

 

not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Particulars
 Fair Value 

 Level 2  Level 3  Total  Level 2  Level 3  Total 
Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    37,273.24  37,273.24  -    -    23,409.91  23,409.91 

Other Bank balances  -    -    9,466.09  9,466.09  -    -    1,318.66  1,318.66 

Trade receivables  -    -    415.59  415.59  -    -    183.80  183.80 

Loans  -    -    2,85,938.98  2,85,938.98  -    -    1,67,654.93  1,67,654.93 

 -    -    1,402.15  1,402.15  -    -    168.28  168.28 

Total  -    -    3,34,496.05  3,34,496.05  -    -   
Financial Liabilities 

instruments
 -    132.13  -    132.13  -    -    -    -   

Debt securities (Unlisted)  -    -    -    -    -    -    1,490.63  1,490.63 

Debt securities (Listed)  -    -    24,506.02  24,506.02  -    -    29,744.67  29,744.67 

Borrowings (other than debt 
securities)

 -    -    2,10,501.98  2,10,501.98  -    -    1,16,322.09  1,16,322.09 

Lease liabilities  -    -    1,139.96  1,139.96  -    -    1,393.79  1,393.79 

 -    -    1,572.62  1,572.62  -    -    1,707.15  1,707.15 

Total  -    2,37,720.58  -    -   

42. Financial Risk Management  

 The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company’s 

reporting and measurement of  risk in various activities undertaken by the Company. The general objective of risk management 
is to support business units by ensuring risks are timely identified and adequately considered in decision-making, and are 
viewed in conjunction with the earnings. 

 The audit committee oversees how the management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and 
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The 
audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of 
risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

 The Risk Management committee of Board exercises supervisory power in connection with the risk management of the 
company, monitoring of the exposures, reviewing adequacy of risk management process, reviewing internal control systems, 
ensuring compliance with the statutory/regulatory framework of the risk management process.

42.A Credit Risk

number of customers.   
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 42.A.i Credit risk management  

 Credit risk for loan receivables is managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and 
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of 

and estimates are assessed by the Company at every reporting date. 

 Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, however, the Company continues to 
attempt to recover the receivables.  

 42.A.ii Collateral and other credit enhancements

 The Company employs a range of tools to reduce credit risk. The Company seeks collateral coverage, assignment of contract 
proceeds and other forms of protection to secure lending and minimize credit risks wherever possible. The Company’s 
borrowing agreements also include legally enforceable netting arrangements for loans and deposits enabling the Company to 
consolidate the customer’s various accounts with the Company and either transfer credit balances to cover any outstanding 
borrowings or freeze the credit balances until the customer settles their outstanding obligations to the Company.

 Collateral held varies, but may include: 

 - Fixed Deposits

 - Residential and commercial real estate property

 - Land

  

 Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalents and Bank deposits is generally low as the said deposits have been made with the 
banks having good reputation, good past records and high quality credit rating and also reviews their credit worthiness on 
an on-going basis. The risk of deterioration of credit worthiness of the lessor in the case of security deposits is assumed to be 

 42.A.iv Financial Asset Received as Collaterals

Particulars
As at  As at  

Company is permitted to adjust in the absence of default above comprising of :
 719.39  1,288.56 

-  Advance from customers  438.54  702.49 

-  Fixed deposit held as collateral  280.85  586.07 

 

 The following table presents the recognised financial instruments that are offset and other similar agreements but are not 
offset.      

 The column 'maximum exposure' shows the impact on the Company's balance sheet if all set-off rights are exercised.

Particulars Gross 
 amounts 

Gross amounts 

balance sheet 

 Net amounts 
presented in 
the balance 

sheet  

 Netting potential 
not recognised on 

the balance sheet - 
Financial collateral * 

 Maximum 
exposure 

Financial Assets
Loans  2,87,845.68  -    2,87,845.68  719.39  2,87,126.29 

Bank balances other than cash and cash 
equivalents

 9,468.95  -    9,468.95  1,406.34  8,062.61 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings  2,10,384.90  -    2,10,384.90  1,406.34  2,08,978.56 

Other Financial Liabilities  1,572.62  -    1,572.62  438.54  1,134.08 
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Particulars Gross 
 amounts 

Gross amounts 

balance sheet 

 Net amounts 
presented in 
the balance 

sheet  

 Netting potential 
not recognised on 

the balance sheet - 
Financial collateral * 

 Maximum 
exposure 

Financial Assets
Loans  1,69,051.31  -    1,69,051.31  1,288.56  1,67,762.75 

Bank balances other than cash and cash 
equivalents

 1,319.77  -    1,319.77  762.34  557.43 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings  1,16,283.41  -    1,16,283.41  762.34  1,15,521.07 

Other Financial Liabilities  1,707.15  -    1,707.15  702.49  1,004.66 

 * - 
its borrowings.    

  

 Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the decline in credit quality or the failure of a borrower, counterparty, third party 

 •  Loans to students (B2C)

 •  Loans to educational institutions (B2B)

 Credit risk also arises from concentration of risks. Concentration of risk, within credit risk, is the risk associated with having a 

  The Company's credit risk team assesses the credit worthiness of each borrower in the B2C segment based on their CIBIL 
scores and on the number of days past due. In the B2B segment, credit worthiness is based on the number of days past 
due. 

  The following tables set out information about the credit quality of loans to the B2C and B2B segments. The amounts in 

Particulars
Stage I Stage II Stage III Total Stage I Stage II Stage III Total

B2C - Cibil Score Range

Above 650  2,84,253.98  3,236.89  2.15  2,87,493.02  1,62,978.35  1,415.46  20.07  1,64,413.88 

Upto 650  8,020.82  2,366.53  131.70  10,519.05  5,521.96  1,199.07  149.93  6,870.96 

 2,92,274.80  5,603.42 

Less: ECL                                           385.13  87.07  90.71  562.91  112.05  36.95  97.97  246.97 

 2,577.58  72.03 

B2B - Weighted Buckets 

1 to 5  5,199.57  -    -    5,199.57  6,633.01  -    -    6,633.01 

More than 5  1,912.74  2,061.26  -    3,974.00  2,540.08  1,869.38  -    4,409.46 

Non performing asset  -    -    2,373.94  2,373.94  -    -    2,621.88  2,621.88 

 2,373.94 

Less: ECL                                            (E)  121.13  233.55  989.11  1,343.79  195.38  245.77  708.26  1,149.41 

Total Gross exposure                   7,664.68  2,507.79  3,09,559.58 

Less: ECL                     506.26  320.62  1,079.82  1,906.70  307.43  282.72  806.23  1,396.38 

 2,98,880.85  7,344.06  3,07,652.88 
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Particulars
Stage I Stage II Stage III Total Stage I Stage II Stage III Total

Loans (Refer note 6)  2,77,943.00  7,394.89  2,507.79  2,87,845.68  1,61,929.82  4,329.61  2,791.88  1,69,051.31 

Committed lines of credit*  21,444.11  269.79  -    21,713.90  15,743.58  154.30  -    15,897.88 

Total Gross Exposure  7,664.68  2,507.79  3,09,559.58 
Gross carrying amount
Loans and advances carried at 
amortised cost
Loans to students (B2C)  2,71,087.23  5,344.93  133.85  2,76,566.01  1,52,930.99  2,472.33  170.00  1,55,573.32 

Loans to educational 
institutions (B2B)

 6,855.77  2,049.96  2,373.94  11,279.67  8,998.83  1,857.28  2,621.88  13,477.99 

Total  2,77,943.00  7,394.89  2,507.79  2,87,845.68 
Expected credit loss
Loans and advances carried at 
amortised cost
Loans to students (B2C)  385.13  87.07  90.71  562.91  112.05  36.95  97.97  246.97 

Loans to educational 
institutions (B2B)

 121.13  233.55  989.11  1,343.79  195.38  245.77  708.26  1,149.41 

Total  506.26  320.62  307.43  282.72  806.23 
Net carrying amount
Loans and advances carried at 
amortised cost
Loans to students (B2C)  2,70,702.10  5,257.86  43.14  2,76,003.10  1,52,818.94  2,435.38  72.03  1,55,326.35 

Loans to educational 
institutions (B2B)

 6,734.64  1,816.41  1,384.83  9,935.88  8,803.45  1,611.51  1,913.62  12,328.58 

Total  2,77,436.74  7,074.27  2,85,938.98  4,046.89 

  * Committed lines of credit represents the expected conversion of the sanctioned lines

  

  The following disclosure provides stage wise reconciliation of the Company's gross carrying amount and ECL allowances 

transfers upon the gross carrying amount and associated allowance for ECL. The net remeasurement of ECL arising from 
stage transfers represents the increase or decrease due to these transfers.

  The ‘New assets originated /repayments received (net)’ represent the gross carrying amount and associated allowance 
ECL impact from transactions within the Company's lending portfolio.

Particulars
Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Gross carrying amount 
opening balance 

 -    5,370.00  -    76,929.45 

New / increase of credit 
exposure during the year 

 1,45,094.34  3,029.48  179.85  -    1,06,072.12  1,631.75  230.43  -   

Assets derecognised or 
repaid (excluding write offs) 

 (28,319.67)  (914.98)  (108.78)  -    (15,359.13)  (360.00)  (93.31)  -   

Transfer to Stage 1  1,208.54  (1,177.72)  (30.82)  -    1,941.40  (1,941.40)  -    -    -   
Transfer to Stage 2  (1,911.46)  2,497.70  (586.24)  -    (1,018.73)  1,067.57  (48.84)  -   

Transfer to Stage 3  (58.57)  (368.31)  426.88  -    -    (18.28)  (1,438.31)  1,456.59  -    -   
Changes to Contractual Cash 

resulting into derecognition 
 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Amounts written off  -    (0.89)  (164.98)  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Gross carrying amount 
closing balance 

 2,77,943.00  7,394.89  2,507.79  -    2,87,845.68  -   
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Particulars
Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Balance 
 307.43  282.72  806.23  -    446.30  348.38  -   

New / increase of credit 
exposure during the year 

 275.19  72.38  82.41  -    429.98  19.40  31.85  311.22  -    362.47 

A s s e t s  d e r e c o g n i s e d  o r 
repaid (excluding write offs) 

 (58.30)  (22.97)  -    -    (31.69)  (5.90)  -    -   

Transfer to Stage 1  49.94  (29.91)  (20.03)  -    174.22  (174.22)  -    -    -   
Transfer to Stage 2  (12.05)  129.30  (117.25)  -    0.00  (4.95)  14.72  (9.77)  -    -   
Transfer to Stage 3  (1.23)  (49.86)  51.09  -    -    (0.02)  (131.51)  131.53  -    -   
Impact on year end ECL 
of Exposures transferred 
between Stages during the 
year and reversal of ECL on 
account of recovery 

 (54.72)  (61.02)  (1.45)  -    2.99  101.48  24.87  -   

Changes to models and 
inputs used for ECL 
Calculation 

 -    -    372.18  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Amounts written off  -    (0.02)  (93.36)  -    (93.38)  -    -    -    -    -   

ECL Allowance - Closing 
Balance 

 506.26  320.62  -    307.43  282.72  806.23  -   

Particulars
 As at  As at 

Cash and cash equivalents  37,273.24  23,409.91 

 The Company maintains its Cash and cash equivalents and Bank deposits with banks having low credit risk as per the bank's 
external credit ratings and also reviews their credit-worthiness on an on-going basis. The Company has provided for expected 

 

 The Company generally accepts bank deposits and real estate as collaterals in the case of secured loans. The Company's 
exposure between secured and unsecured is as follows:

Particulars
 As at  As at 

Loans to students (B2C) Property and Fixed deposits

Loans to educational institutions (B2B) Property

 The Company has applied a three-stage approach to measure expected credit losses (ECL) on debt instruments accounted for 
at amortised cost and FVOCI. Assets migrate through following three stages based on the changes in credit quality since initial 
recognition: 

 
are not credit-impaired upon origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events 
occurring within the next 12- months is recognized.

 
initial recognition but are not credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognized.

  Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired upon occurrence of one or more events 

impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognized and interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised 
cost.    
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of default at the reporting date compared with the risk of default at initial recognition. Assessment of whether there has been a 

for a minimum period of 12 months from the date of restructuring.

 As soon as a financial instrument originates or purchased, it is categorized as Stage 1. This is applicable across all the loan 
facilities and bank balances.

 Stage 2

 In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and 
supportable, including historical experience that is available without undue cost or effort.

 1)  More than 30 days past due

 Stage 3

  Facilities in which any instalment or partial instalment is outstanding for a period of more than 90 days read 
with extended RBI guidelines. 

 Following is the staging criteria for investments:

obtained from the historical default rates or delinquency status of account across various internal rating grades, products or 
sectors.  

 Credit exposures transition back from stage 2 to stage 1 when the credit quality of the credit facility shows significant 
improvement. Primarily, when factors that previously triggered an exposure moving to Stage 2 no longer meet, such exposures 
move back to Stage 1 and a 12-month ECL measured instead of Lifetime ECL.

which the customer was moved to Stage 2) the customer will be upgraded back to Stage 1.

 

 A Customer’s loan account that has moved to stage 3 (i.e. more than 90 days DPD) and the customer subsequently pays as 
under:

 1)  Partial payment of overdue is paid by customer: Customer’s loan account will be in stage 3 till the customer clears off the 
entire overdue in its account.

 2)  Full amount of overdue is paid by the customer:  Customer’s loan account will be moved from stage 3 to stage 2 on 
payment made to them. The account shall be upgraded to stage 1 if there is zero DPD in the account for a continuous 
period of 3 months.

 For Customer’s loan account that move from Stage 1 to stage 2(i.e. regular over dues more than 30 days but where DPD has 
never crossed 90 days) and subsequently customer pays the overdue amount the loan account will be upgraded to stage 1 
immediately. 

 -  Probability of defaults (PDs)

 - Loss given default (LGD)

 -  Exposure at default (EAD) i.e. the total expected exposure in the event of a default.
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requires the use of separate PDs for:

 1.   Stage 1, i.e., 12-month duration 

 2.   Stage 2, i.e., Lifetime but not credit impaired

 3.   Stage 3, i.e., Lifetime and credit impaired

 The company has assessed the LGD based on the performance of the portfolio. LGD represents recovery from default assets. 
For Students loans and Education Institution loans which are secured by financial and property related collaterals, LGD is 

applied static LGD for high DPD customers.

 Financial collateral like fixed deposits is liquid collateral in nature, so the value of collateral is equivalent to fair value for 
purpose of computation of LGD.

 In case collateral being property, the fair value of collateral is determined based on the distressed value/realizable value of the 
property. The difference between the market value of collateral and the distressed value/realizable value of the property is 
considered as haircut and the same is applied on the market value of collateral to arrive at fair value of collateral.

 The Company measures the amount of ECL on a financial instrument in a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount. The Company considers its historical loss experience and adjusts the same for current observable data. 
The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the probability of default, loss given default and exposure at default. These 
parameters are derived from the Company’s internally developed statistical models and other historical data. In addition, 
the Company uses reasonable and supportable information on future economic conditions including macroeconomic factors 
such as gross domestic product, Consumer price Index, and unemployment rate. Since incorporating these forward looking 
information increases the judgment as to how the changes in these macroeconomic factor will affect ECL, the methodology 
and assumptions are reviewed regularly. The following table presents the key macroeconomic indicators used for the purposes 
of measurement of ECL in the periods presented.

 

 GDP growth  (15.51)  16.81 

 CPI-India  (4.23)  4.32 

 CPI-USA  (0.28)  0.41 

 Unemployment-USA  (0.28)  0.50 

 GDP growth  (2.01)  1.90 

 CPI-India  (0.68)  0.80 

 CPI-USA  (4.96)  5.76 

 Unemployment-USA  (1.81)  1.93 

42.B Liquidity risk      

Company might be unable to meet its payment obligation when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash 

process and contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the 
availability cash, cash equivalents and high grade collateral which could be used to secure additional funding if required.

 The company maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that are assumed to be easily liquidated in the 
event of unforeseen interruption in cash flow. The company also has committed lines of credit that it can access to meet 
liquidity needs. In accordance with Company’s policy, the liquidity position is assessed under a variety of scenarios, giving due 
consideration to stress factors relating to both the market in general and specially to the Company.
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 Borrowing from banks and financial institutions and issue of debentures are considered as important sources of funds to 

remaining period as at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date.

Particulars
Total Up to  month  

to 2 
months

months 
 to 3 

months

3 to 6 
months months

 
3 year

3 - 5  
years

More  
than  

5 years

Financial liabilities

instruments 
 132.13  0.33  0.31  3.79  4.27  8.20  59.45  55.78  -   

Debt securities  28,729.57  364.39  351.71  48.99  5,763.16  1,430.41  20,770.91  -    -   

Borrowings (other than 
debt securities)

 2,56,584.01  5,638.61  5,017.53  7,583.31  21,660.31  37,613.29  1,22,551.34  47,105.42  9,414.20 

Lease liabilities  1,327.52  30.43  30.47  30.47  96.57  176.78  734.01  221.46  7.33 

 1,572.62  -    8.20  375.00  750.88  -    -    -    438.54 

Total  2,88,345.85  6,033.76  5,408.22  39,228.68  47,382.66  9,860.07 
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents  37,273.24  30,266.38  5,506.23  1,500.63  -    -    -    -    -   

Bank balance other than 
cash and cash equivalents 
above

 9,466.09  5,253.85  337.12  335.61  2,502.98  250.61  140.81  -    645.11 

Trade receivables  415.59  415.59  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Loans  5,58,318.59  1,166.00  1,188.74  1,219.97  4,151.48  9,827.87  90,690.79  1,41,765.39  3,08,308.35 

 1,402.15  25.43  0.49  -    13.37  -    471.44  873.49  17.93 

Total  6,06,875.66  7,032.58  6,667.83 

 

Particulars
Total Up to  month  

to 2 
months

months 
 to 3 

months

3 to 6 
months months

 
3 year

3 - 5  
years

More  
than  

5 years

Financial liabilities
Debt securities  31,015.63  491.71  173.97  5,584.58  7,962.79  3,288.47  13,514.11  -    -   

Borrowings (other than 
debt securities)

 1,40,976.79  2,520.07  2,969.13  3,604.39  12,768.91  19,399.79  68,768.61  25,642.58  5,303.31 

Lease liabilities  1,689.77  29.91  29.95  29.95  90.13  182.31  716.24  574.98  36.30 

 1,707.15  -    43.17  180.00  781.49  -    -    -    702.49 

Total  9,398.92  22,870.57  82,998.96 
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents  23,409.91  23,409.91  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Bank balance other than 
cash and cash equivalents 
above

 1,318.66  503.85  -    26.28  4.09  -    139.68  -    644.76 

Trade receivables  183.80  183.80  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Loans  3,42,778.86  976.34  982.24  979.87  2,962.80  6,172.39  48,739.84  82,033.53  1,99,931.85 

 168.28  -    1.06  -    -    -    26.61  125.19  15.42 

Total  25,073.90  983.30  2,966.89  2,00,592.03 
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42.C Market risk

 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices and is exposed to risks such as 

 a)  Currency risk

 b)  Prepayment risk

 c)  Interest rate risk

 which will affect the Company’s income. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

 

Foreign currency risk for the Company arise majorly on account of foreign currency borrowings. The Company manages 
this foreign currency risk by entering in to forward contract. When a derivative is entered in to for the purpose of being 
as hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match with the terms of the hedge exposure. The 
Company’s policy is to fully hedge its foreign currency borrowings at the time of drawdown and remain so till repayment. 
The counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank.

  Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

  A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in foreign currency at the reporting date would have increased 

Particulars
For the  

period ended 
For the  

period ended 

USD sensitivity
Decrease by 100 bps:  (50.00)  -   

Increase by 100 bps:  50.00  -   

  Prepayment risk is the risk that the Company will incur a financial loss because its customers and counterparties 
repay or request repayment earlier than expected particularly in case of fixed rate loans when interest rates fall. 

        

mismatches or gaps in the amounts of assets and liabilities and off-balance-sheet instruments that mature or reprice 

tolerance limits for each time bucket which is approved by the Board. Further, the Company undertakes Net Interest 
Income (NII) analysis to assess the impact of changes in interest rate on the earnings of the Company.  The Interest Rate 
Sensitivity (IRS) gaps are monitored by ALCO on monthly basis.

  The table below details the exposure of the Company to interest rate risk

Particulars
As at  As at  

Fixed rate instruments
 Financial Assets  48,561.09  25,082.08 

 Financial Liabilities  (28,845.38)  (14,975.69)

Floating rate instruments
 Financial Assets  2,87,845.68  1,69,051.31 

 Financial Liabilities  (2,08,518.74)  (1,34,117.95)
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  A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) 

exchange rates, remain constant.

Particulars
For the  

period ended 
For the  

period ended 

Decrease by 100 bps:  (793.27)  (349.33)

Increase by 100 bps:  793.27  349.33 

  The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rate across all yield curves. This calculation 
also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures 
outstanding as at that date. The period end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding 
during the period.

43 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities    

 The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or 
settled.

Particulars
months months 

 Total 
months months 

 Total 

I Assets
A. Financial assets

a)  Cash and cash equivalents  37,273.24  -    37,273.24  23,409.91  -    23,409.91 

b)  Other Bank balances  8,680.18  785.91  9,466.09  534.22  784.44  1,318.66 

c)  Trade receivables  415.59  -    415.59  183.80  -    183.80 

d)  Loans  38,385.91  2,47,553.07  2,85,938.98  22,772.75  1,44,882.18  1,67,654.93 

e)  39.30  1,362.85  1,402.15  1.06  167.22  168.28 

B.
a)  Current tax assets (net)  -    129.40  129.40  -    222.90  222.90 

b)  Deferred tax assets (net)  -    -    -    -    206.53  206.53 

c)  Property, plant and 
equipment 

 -    320.82  320.82  -    325.81  325.81 

d)  Right of use asset  298.33  705.03  1,003.36  314.19  1,003.38  1,317.57 

e)  Intangible assets under 
development 

 -    89.68  89.68  -    153.47  153.47 

f)  Other intangible assets  -    483.72  483.72  -    163.27  163.27 

g)  375.92  38.64  414.56  239.48  45.22  284.70 

 Total Assets  85,468.47  3,36,937.59 

II Liabilities
A. Financial liabilities

a)  Derivative liabilities  16.90  115.23  132.13  -    -    -   

b)  Debt securities  6,634.51  17,500.00  24,134.51  17,082.57  12,626.72  29,709.29 

c)  Borrowings (other than 
debt securities) 

 58,466.45  1,51,918.45  2,10,384.90  30,922.32  85,361.09  1,16,283.41 

d)  Lease liabilities  279.55  860.41  1,139.96  253.84  1,139.95  1,393.79 

e)  1,134.08  438.54  1,572.62  1,004.66  702.49  1,707.15 

B.
a)  Deferred tax liabilities (net)  -    124.25  124.25  -    -    -   

b)  Provisions  50.24  204.86  255.10  34.83  138.61  173.44 

c)
liabilities 

 168.62  195.46  364.08  133.97  174.93  308.90 

 Total Liabilities  66,750.35 
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44. Capital Management       
 The primary objectives of the capital management policy is to ensure that the Company continuously complies with capital 

requirements required by regulator, maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business 
and to maximise shareholder value.

 The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the 
risk characteristics of its activities. In order to fund growth or comply with regulatory capital requirement, Company depends 
on internal accrual or may raise additional capital. Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, 
return capital to shareholders. 

 No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years, however the same is constantly 
reviewed by the Board.

Particulars
As at  As at  

Capital Funds
Net owned funds (Tier I Capital)  97,257.12  45,208.63 

Tier II Capital  830.87  591.56 

Total capital funds  98,087.99  45,800.19 

Total risk weighted assets  3,11,530.45  1,85,350.84 

Tier I capital

Tier II capital

Total capital funds

45. Net debt reconciliation      

Particulars
As at  As at  

Cash and cash equivalents  37,273.47  23,410.01 

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (including interest 
receivable)

 9,468.95  1,319.77 

Debt securities (including interest accrued)  24,134.51  29,709.29 

Borrowings other than debt securities (including interest accrued)  2,10,384.90  1,16,283.41 

Net Debt

 b)  Movement in Net Debt during the year

Particulars

Financial Assets

TotalCash and cash 
equivalents

Bank balances 
other than 

cash and cash 
equivalents

Debt 
securities

Borrowings 
other than debt 

securities

 29,709.29 
 1,24,606.56  8,149.18  19,991.59  1,37,783.00 

 (1,10,743.10)  -    (25,614.57)  (44,281.01)  40,847.52 
Interest expense  -    -    2,271.80  16,849.17 

Interest paid  during the year  -    -    (2,223.60)  (16,249.67)

 37,273.47  9,468.95 
 36,590.70 

 1,02,101.64  653.86  18,959.14  1,01,971.53  18,175.17 

 (87,104.80)  (3,476.49)  (18,000.90)  65,627.41 

Interest expense  2,433.19  6,889.24  9,322.43 

Interest paid  during the year  (2,072.94)  (6,379.85)  (8,452.79)

 29,709.29 
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46. Transfer of Financial Assets      

 

 The Company has transferred a pool of loan receivables backed by underlying assets by entering into securitisation 
transactions with the Special Purpose Vehicle Trusts (SPV Trust) for consideration received in cash at the inception of the 
transaction.         

 The Company, being Originator of these loan receivables, also acts as Servicer with a responsibility of collection of receivables 
from its borrowers and depositing the same in Collection and Pay out Account maintained by the SPV Trust for making 
scheduled pay outs to the investors in Pass Through Certificates (PTCs) issued by the SPV Trust. These securitisation 

over collateral of Pool principal and excess interest spread (EIS) as credit support in the event of shortfall in collections from 
underlying loan contracts. By virtue of existence of credit enhancement, the Company is exposed to credit risk, being the 
expected losses that will be incurred on the transferred loan receivables to the extent of the credit enhancement provided.

 In view of the above, the Company has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset 
and thereby does not meet the derecognition criteria as set out in Ind-AS 109. Consideration received in this transaction is 
presented as ‘Borrowing under Securitisation’ under Note 15.   

 The following table provide a summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such a way that part or all of the 

Particulars
As at  As at  

Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at amortised cost  9,223.72  5,691.29 

Carrying amount of associated liabilities (Debt securities - measured at amortised cost)*  7,369.74  4,773.09 

Fair value of assets  9,223.72  5,691.29 

Fair value of associated liabilities  7,369.84  4,780.73 

Net position at Fair Value  1,853.88  910.56

 * inclusive of EIR impact

47. Utilisation of funds       

 No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or 
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the 

 The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall 

48. Events after reporting date      

49. Regulatory disclosures - RBI  

 The following additional information is disclosed in the terms of Master Direction – Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking 
Financial Company – Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 issued vide RBI/DoR/2023-24/105 DoR.FIN.REC.
No.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October 19, 2023 as amended from time to time.

 The additional disclosure notes required by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) are prepared under Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), unless otherwise stated.

Particulars
As at  As at  

 (i) 

 (ii) 

 (iii) 

 (iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as tier II capital  -    -   

 (v) Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments  -    -   

 (vi) Liquidity Coverage Ratio*  Not Applicable  Not Applicable
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 *The Company is not required provide disclosure of Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) is applicable on the NBFCs with asset size 
of Rs. 5,000 crore. The company is not falling within the given criteria and hence disclosure of LCR is not made.

 The Company has not raised any amount by way of issue of hybrid debt, subordinated debt of perpetual debt.

49.2 Investments

 The Company has Nil investments as on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

49.3 Derivatives     

Particulars
As at  As at  

The notional principal of currency forward agreements  5,736.92  - 

under the agreements
 -  - 

Collateral required by the applicable NBFC upon entering into forward  -  - 

Concentration of credit risk arising from the forward  -  - 

The fair value of the currency forward book  132.13  - 

 49.3.2 Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives

 The Company has not entered into any exchange traded derivatives.

 49.3.3 Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

  A Qualitative Disclosure

   Financial Risk Management

   The Company has to manage various risks associated with the lending business. These risks include liquidity risk, 
interest rate risk and counterparty risk.

   The Investment policy and ALM Policy as approved by the Board sets limits for exposures on various parameters. The 
Company manages its interest rate in accordance with the guidelines prescribed therein.

   Liquidity risk and Interest rate risks, arising out of maturity mismatch of assets and liabilities, are managed through 
regular monitoring of maturity profiles. As a part of Asset Liability Management, the Company has also entered 
into forward contract wherein it has covered its foreign currency risk. Counter party risk is reviewed periodically to 

   Measurement and Accounting

   All derivative contracts are recognised on the Balance Sheet and measured at fair value. Gain/loss arising on account 

  B Quantitative disclosures - Forward contract

Particulars
As at  As at  

Derivatives (notional principal amount)  5,736.92  -   

Marked to market positions

 Assets (+)  -    -   

 Liability (-)  132.13  -   

Credit exposure  -    -   

Unhedged exposures  -    -   

 There are no foreign currency exposures as at current year end. (Previous year - Nil)



111

Notes to the �nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

49.5 Asset liability management  

 

A.i

Particulars

 Assets 

Loans  Investments  Fixed  
Deposits 

 Foreign 
Currency 

Assets 
1 day to 7 days  716.47  -    7,255.39  - 

8 day to 14 days  888.44  -    2,504.66  - 

15 day to 30/31 days (One month)  1,518.47  -    6,034.12  - 

Over One months to 2 months  3,126.16  -    5,843.35  - 

Over 2 months up to 3 months  3,131.84  -    1,836.23  - 

Over 3 months to 6 months  9,542.32  -    2,502.98  - 

Over 6 months to 1 year  19,462.21  -    250.61  - 

Over 1 year to 3 years  94,395.99  -    140.81  - 

Over 3 years to 5 years  1,07,043.97  -    -    - 

Over 5 years  46,113.11  -    645.11  - 

Total  2,85,938.98  -    -  

A.ii
Particulars

Liabilities

Borrowings and 
Debt Securities

 Foreign Currency 
Borrowings

1 day to 7 days  965.57  -    -   

8 day to 14 days  216.75  -    -   

15 day to 30/31 days (One month)  3,002.20  -    -   

Over One months to 2 months  3,388.38  -    -   

Over 2 months up to 3 months  5,673.49  -    316.96 

Over 3 months to 6 months  22,353.66  -    318.09 

Over 6 months to 1 year  28,225.20  -    640.67 

Over 1 year to 3 years  1,16,701.99  -    2,679.73 

Over 3 years to 5 years  40,559.60  -    1,048.23 

Over 5 years  8,428.89  -    -   

Total  -    5,003.68

B.i

Particulars

 Assets 

Loans  Investments  Fixed  
Deposits 

 Foreign 
Currency 

Assets 
1 day to 7 days  421.57  -    7,025.05  -   

8 day to 14 days  547.57  -    -    -   

15 day to 30/31 days (One month)  938.76  -    8,006.55  -   

Over One months to 2 months  1,904.79  -    -    -   

Over 2 months up to 3 months  1,899.02  -    26.28  -   

Over 3 months to 6 months  5,683.31  -    4.09  -   

Over 6 months to 1 year  11,377.73  -    -    -   

Over 1 year to 3 years  52,476.76  -    139.68  -   

Over 3 years to 5 years  60,964.37  -    -    -   

Over 5 years  31,441.05  -    644.76  -   

Total  -    -  
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B.ii
Particulars

Liabilities

Borrowings and 
Debt Securities

 Foreign Currency 
Borrowings

1 day to 7 days  547.46  -    -   

8 day to 14 days  176.31  -    -   

15 day to 30/31 days (One month)  2,723.48  -    -   

Over One months to 2 months  1,996.43  -    -   

Over 2 months up to 3 months  7,950.80  -    -   

Over 3 months to 6 months  17,391.73  -    -   

Over 6 months to 1 year  17,218.68  -    -   

Over 1 year to 3 years  70,073.81  -    -   

Over 3 years to 5 years  23,585.07  -    -   

Over 5 years  4,328.93  -    -   

Total  -    -  

   # This pertains to inter corporate deposits

49.6 Exposures       

 

Exposure to real estate sector
 As at   As at  

Direct exposure

Residential mortgages -

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be 
occupied by the borrower or that is rented:( Individual housing loans up to 
INR15 lakhs may be shown separately)

 27,646.01  29,536.40 

Commercial real estate -

retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family residential 
buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, 
hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc.). Exposure includes 
non-fund based (NFB) limits.

 -    -   

exposures -

 -  Residential  -    -   

 -  Commercial Real Estate  -    -   

Indirect exposure

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) 
and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

 -    -   

 -    -   

 29,536.40 

 

asset (e.g., rentals/sales proceeds). However, the primary source of repayments in case of Education Institution Loans are the 

sale proceeds.

 Hence, such exposures shall not be categorised as 'CRE' and accordingly relevant disclosure for FY 2023-24 & FY 2022-23 is 
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Exposure to capital market
 As at   As at  

 a) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures 
and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively 
invested in corporate debt

 -    -   

 b) advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on 
clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), 
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual 
funds

 -    -   

 c) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or 
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as 
primary security.

 -    -   

 d) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security 
of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity 
oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares / 
convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual 
funds 'does not fully cover the advances.

 -    -   

 e) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on 
behalf of stockbrokers and market makers.

 -    -   

 f) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / 
debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's 
contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising resources

 -    -   

 g)  -    -   

 h) Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue 
of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity 
oriented mutual funds

 -    -   

 i) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading  -    -   

 j) All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds:

(i) Category I  -    -   

(i)  Category II  -    -   

(i)  Category III  -    -   

 k) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)  -    -   

 l) others (not covered above)  -    -   

Total exposure to capital market  -    -   

Sectoral exposure
 As at   As at  

Education industry

Total Exposure*  3,09,559.58  1,84,949.19 

Gross NPAs  2,507.79  2,791.88 

  *includes on balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposure and committed lines of credit represents the expected 
conversion of the sanctioned lines.

 During the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 the Company’s credit exposure to single borrowers and group 
borrowers were within the limits prescribed by the RBI.

49.9 Unsecured advances

 The portfolio of Company include unsecured loans. Details of loans are provided in Note 6 of this financial statement. 
During the year, the Company has not given any advance against collateral of rights, licenses, authority, etc. (Previous year : 
Nil).
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Finance): 

 i) Ministry of Corporate Affairs

 ii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)

 During the current year the Company has paid delay charges of INR 0.00 lakhs * to Provident fund authorities towards delay in 
payment. 

 During the previous year the Company has paid penalties/delay charges of INR 0.26 lakhs to GST authorities towards 
disallowance of GST Input credit.

 * - Less than INR 500

 Provisions and contingencies

Exposure to real estate sector
 As at   As at  

Provisions for depreciation on investment  -    -   

Provision towards Stage 3  273.58  457.85 

Provision made towards income tax expenses  2,340.68  890.90 

Provision for Stage 1/Stage 2 Assets including restructured and others  236.75  (2.49)

 2.59  1.14 

Other Provision and Contingencies *  109.50  94.68 

Provision for gratuity expense  31.55  16.54 

Provision for compensated absences  23.00  12.83 

Provision for ESOP  54.95  65.31 

Total  94.68

 

 During the current year the Company has not drawn from any reserve. (Previous year : Nil)

 

Particulars
 As at   As at  

 A. 
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers  6,666.80  6,704.20 

 B. 
Total Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / Customers  6,766.47  6,737.07 

 C. 
Total Exposures to top Four NPA Assets  1,876.73  1,676.99 

 D. Sector-wise NPA Assets  
Total Advances  in that sector

Sectors
 As at   As at  

Agriculture and allied activities

MSME

Corporate borrowers

Services

Unsecured loans - Bill discounting

Auto loans

Other loans*

* Computed basis the Gross carrying amount of advances
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  The Company is a Non Deposit Accepting Systemically Important NBFC. Accordingly, the Company has not accepted any 
deposits during the current and previous year. Also there are no outstanding deposits from earlier years (Previous Year : 
Nil).

 The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of movement of Stage 3 assets net of provision (Also refer 
note 6.b)

Particulars
 As at   As at  

* Computed basis the Gross carrying amount of advances

(a) Opening balance  2,791.88  1,247.01 

(b) Additions during the year  606.71  1,593.71 

(c) Reductions during the year  (890.80)  (48.84)

(d) Closing balance  2,507.79 

(a) Opening balance  1,985.65  898.63 

(b) Additions during the year  101.03  1,126.09 

(c) Reductions during the year  (658.71)  (39.07)

(d) Closing balance

(a) Opening Balance  806.23  348.38 

(b) Additions during the year  505.68  467.62 

(c) Write off/ write back of excess provision  (232.09)  (9.77)

(d) Closing balance  806.23

    

 Long Term debt instruments and Non-Convertible Debentures: CRISIL A+/Stable (Previous year rating CRISIL A/Stable)

 Short term debt instruments and short-term bank facilities: Withdrawn (Previous year rating CRISIL A1)

 Market linked debentures : CRISIL PPMLD A+/Stable (Previous year rating CRISIL PPMLD A/Stable)

 Commercial Paper : Withdrawn (Previous year rating CRISIL A1)

     

 Long Term debt instruments and long-term bank facilities: CARE A+; Stable (Previous year rating CARE A; Stable)

 Long Term debt instruments and Non-Convertible Debentures: CARE A+; Stable (Previous year rating CARE A; Stable) 

 Commercial Paper : CARE A1+ (Previous year rating - Nil)

 Market linked debentures: Withdrawn (Previous year rating CARE PP- MLD A; Stable)

Disclosures relating to assignment and securitisation

 Disclosure as per requirements of Master Direction – Reserve Bank of India (Securitisation of Standard Assets) Directions, 
2021 (RBI/DOR/2021-22/85 DOR.STR.REC.53/21.04.177/2021-22) dated September 24, 2021 amended from time to time 
and Master Direction – Reserve Bank of India (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions, 2021 (RBI circular no RBI/DOR/2021-
22/86 DOR.STR.REC.51/ 21.04.048/2021-22) dated September 24, 2021 amended from time to time is provided below:
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No. Particulars
 As at   As at  

1 No of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions  4 2

2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored by the 
NBFC

 9,777.76  6,127.66 

3 Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the 
date of balance sheet

 -    -   

(a) Off-Balance Sheet exposures

First loss  -    -   

Others  -    -   

(b) On-Balance Sheet exposures

First loss  1,406.34  762.34 

Others  1,040.61  723.35 

4 Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR  -    -   

(a) Off-Balance Sheet exposures

(i)  Exposure to own securitisations

 First loss  -    -   

 Others  -    -   

(ii)  Exposure to third party securitisations

 First loss  -    -   

 Others  -    -   

(b) On-Balance Sheet exposures

(i)  Exposure to own securitisations

 First loss  -    -   

 Others  -    -   

(ii)  Exposure to third party securitisations

 First loss  -    -   

 Others  -    -   

 

No. Particulars
 As at   As at  

i) Count of loans assigned (number)  316  -   

ii) Amount of loan account assigned  9,262.62  -   

iii) Weighted average maturity (years) (from the date of transfer)  10.02  -   

iv) Weighted average holding period (years)  1.25  -   

v)  -   

vi) Coverage of tangible security  -   

vii) Rating wise distribution of rated loans  Unrated  -   

viii) Number of instances (transactions) where transferor has agreed to replace the 
transferred loans

 Nil  -  

 

 The Company has not acquired any loans not in default during the year ended March 31, 2024.

 The Company has not entered into any assignment transactions during the current year. (Previous year : Nil).

 

year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
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 The Company has neither purchased nor sold non performing assets during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 
2023.   

 

 No transactions were done during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023. 

    

Gross 
Carrying 

Amount as 
per Ind AS

Loss Allowances 

required under 

Net  
Carrying 
Amount

Provisions 
required as 
per IRACP 

norms

between Ind AS 

and IRACP norms
as per RBI Norms

as per  

Standard Stage-1  2,77,943.00  506.26  2,77,436.74  1,197.15  (690.89)

Stage-2  7,394.89  320.62  7,074.27  30.71  289.91 

Sub total  2,85,337.89  826.88 

Substandard Stage-3  449.97  100.60  349.37  45.30  55.30 

Doubtful

 up to 1 year Stage-3  1,367.53  288.93  1,078.60  299.02  (10.09)

 1 to 3 Years Stage-3  690.29  690.29  -    259.08  431.21 

 More than 3 years Stage-3  -    -    -    -    -   

 2,057.82  979.22 
Loss Stage-3  -    -    -    -    -   

 2,507.79  603.40  476.42 
Other items Stage-1  -    -    -    -    -   

Other items Stage-2  -    -    -    -    -   

Other items Stage-3  -    -    -    -    -   

Total
 2,77,943.00  506.26  2,77,436.74 

Stage-2  7,394.89  320.62  7,074.27 
Stage-3  2,507.79  603.40  476.42 

Total  2,87,845.68  2,85,938.98  75.44 

Gross 
Carrying 

Amount as 
per Ind AS

Loss Allowances 

required under 

Net  
Carrying 
Amount

Provisions 
required as 
per IRACP 

norms

between Ind AS 

and IRACP norms
as per RBI Norms

as per  

Standard Stage-1  1,61,929.82  307.43  1,61,622.39  710.50  (403.07)

Stage-2  4,329.61  282.72  4,046.89  18.00  264.72 

Sub total  728.50 

Substandard Stage-3  1,786.54  389.16  1,397.38  179.94  209.22 

Doubtful

 up to 1 year Stage-3  207.79  64.05  143.74  41.74  22.31 

 1 to 3 Years Stage-3  797.55  353.02  444.53  240.98  112.04 

 More than 3 years Stage-3  -    -    -    -    -   

 588.27  282.72 
Loss Stage-3  -    -    -    -    -   

 806.23  462.66  343.57 
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Gross 
Carrying 

Amount as 
per Ind AS

Loss Allowances 

required under 

Net  
Carrying 
Amount

Provisions 
required as 
per IRACP 

norms

between Ind AS 

and IRACP norms
as per RBI Norms

as per  

Other items Stage-1  -    -    -    -    -   

Other items Stage-2  -    -    -    -    -   

Other items Stage-3  -    -    -    -    -   

Total

 307.43 

Stage-2  282.72  4,046.89  264.72 

Stage-3  806.23  462.66  343.57 

Total  205.22 

49.20 

 (as required by RBI guidelines under reference DNBS. CO. PD. No. 367 / 03.10.01 / 2013-14 dated January 23, 2014)

Sl  
No

Standard 
Sub 

Standard Loss
Total 

Details

1 Restructured Accounts as on April 1 of the No. of borrowers  -    -    1.00  1 

Amount outstanding  -    -    41.52  41.52 

Provision thereon  -    -    15.59  15.59 

2 Fresh restructuring during the year No. of borrowers  -    -    -    -   

Amount outstanding*  -    -    -    -   

Provision thereon  -    -    -    -   

3 Recovery No. of borrowers  -    -    -    -   

Amount outstanding  -    -    1.45  1.45 

Provision thereon  -    -    1.46  1.46 

4 Upgradations to restructured standard 
category during the Financial Year

No. of borrowers  -    -    -    -   

Amount outstanding  -    -    -    -   

Provision thereon  -    -    -    -   

5 Restructured standard advances which 
cease to attract higher provisioning and / 
or additional risk weight at the end of the 
Financial Year and hence need not be shown 
as restructured standard advances at the 
beginning of the next Financial Year

No. of borrowers  -    -    -    -   

Amount outstanding  -    -    -    -   

Provision thereon  -    -    -    -   

6 Down gradations of restructured accounts 
during the Financial Year

No. of borrowers  -    -    -    -   

Amount outstanding  -    -    -    -   

Provision thereon  -    -    -    -   

7 Write-offs of restructured accounts during 
the Financial Year

No. of borrowers  -    -    -    -   

Amount outstanding  -    -    -    -   

Provision thereon  -    -    -    -   

8 Restructured Accounts as on March 31 of No. of borrowers  -    -    1  1 

Amount outstanding  -    -    40.07  40.07 

Provision thereon  -    -    14.13  14.13

 * Outstanding as on March 31, 2024
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 Details of resolution plan implemented under the Resolution Framework for COVID-19 related Stress as per RBI circular 
(RBI/2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21) dated August 6, 2020 are given below.

Exposure to accounts 

consequent to 
implementation 

– Position as at 
September 30, 2023 

aggregate 
debt 

that slipped 
into NPA 

during the 

amount 

during 

year

amount 
paid 

by the 
borrowers 
during the 

Exposure to 

as Standard 
consequent to 

resolution plan – 
Position as at March 

Personal Loans  363.18  -    -    11.90  351.27 

Corporate persons*  -    -    -    -    -   

      Of which, MSMEs  -    -    -    -    -   

Others  -    -    -    -    -   

Total  -    -   

 

Particulars
 As at   As at  

27 26

Amount (INR in lakh)#  2,07,569.04  1,31,230.79 

Percentage of funding concentration to total deposits  -    -   

Percentage of funding concentration to total liabilities^

   Not applicable

Particulars
 As at   As at  

Total amount of top 10 borrowings #  1,39,196.10  87,243.48 

Percentage of amount of top 10 borrowings to total borrowings

Particulars
Amount Amount

a) Term loan  1,98,062.35  1,08,034.00 

b) Working capital demand loan  4,952.81  3,476.32 

c) Non convertible debentures  24,134.51  28,218.66 

d) Securitisation payables  7,369.74  4,773.09 

e) Commercial paper  -    1,490.63 

 ^ Total Liabilities represents total liabilities as per balance sheet less total equity 

 # All the above numbers are excluding notional Ind AS adjustments.
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Particulars
 As at   As at  

i)  Commercial Papers to Total Liabilities 

ii)  Commercial Papers to Total Assets 

iii)  Commercial Papers to Public funds Nil Nil

iv)  NCD(Original Maturity < 1yrs.) to Total Liabilities Nil Nil

v)  NCD(Original Maturity < 1yrs.) to Total Assets Nil Nil

vi)  NCD(Original Maturity < 1yrs.) to Public funds Nil Nil

vii)  Other Short Term Liabilities to Total Liabilities 

viii)  Other Short Term Liabilities to Total Assets  

ix)  Other Short Term Liabilities to Public funds Nil Nil

 The Company’s Board of Directors assume the overall responsibility for management of liquidity risk. 

 Risk Management Committee ('RMC') shall have overall responsibility of evaluating liquidity risks faced by the entity and will 
act as per mandate of the Board in managing the liquidity risk and adherence to this framework through itself and the various 
sub-committees reporting into it. 

 Asset Liability Committee ('ALCO') reports into the RMC which in turn is supported by Asset Liability Management Support 
Group in managing the overall liquidity risk of the Company.

49.22  Related Party Disclosure

 Additional Key Management Personnel in addition to Ind AS, as mentioned in the circular, which is required to be disclosed as 

 Deepika Thakur Chauhan, Company Secretary (ceased to be the company secretary w.e.f. April 07, 2022, reappointed w.e.f. 
September 05, 2022)

No.
For the year ended For the year ended 

a Harsha Saksena 103.27 90.91

Deepika Thakur Chauhan 40.29 20.01

b Employee Stock Option Harsha Saksena  -   27.54

Deepika Thakur Chauhan  -   1.32

2  
(incl. securities premium)

Deepika Thakur Chauhan  -   0.55

49.23  

Particulars
 As at   As at  

a Directors and their relatives

Ashwin Jain (co-borrower) *  40.88  -   

b Entities associated with directors and their relatives  -    -   

c  -    -  

 * The borrower Mr. Jai Ashwin Jain is the son of the director. Also, Mrs. Bhavana Jain (wife of the director) is co-borrower to 
this transaction.

49.24

 Non-Executive Directors have no pecuniary relationship with the Company, except receiving sitting fees for the meetings 
attended and as disclosed in note 49.23 and note 38.    
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49.25

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
 As at   As at  

1 Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year 0 0

2 Number of complaints received during the year 108 70

3 Number of complaints disposed during the year 108 70

3.1 Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC 0 0

4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the year 0 0

 

5
Ombudsman

1 5

5.1
Ombudsman

0 3

5.2 Of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/mediation/ 1 2

5.3
Ombudsman against the NBFC

0 0

6 Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than 
those appealed)

0 0

  

 

complaints 
pending at the 

the year

complaints 
received 

during the 
year

decrease in 
the number 

received over the 
previous year

complaints 
pending at the 

pending 
beyond 30 

days

2 3 4 5 6

Service Related 0 72 0 0

Finance Related 0 11 0 0

Behaviour Related 0 4 0 0

Mis- selling 0 6 0 0

Refund Related 0 12 0 0

Others 0 3 0 0

Total 0 54.29% 0 0

Service Related 0 41 0 0

Finance Related 0 12 0 0

Behaviour Related 0 2 0 0

Mis- selling 0 2 0 0

Refund Related 0 8 0 0

Others 0 5 0 0

Total 0 70 233.33% 0 0

49.26 

 There are no instances of breach of covenant of loan availed or debt securities issued during the current year as well as 
previous year.    

49.27

 The Company did not have any Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad as at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Nil) 
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49.28  Intra-Group Exposures

 The Company does not have any intra-group exposures during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

49.29  Advances Against Intangible Securities

 The Company has not given any loans against intangible securities. 

49.30

 The Company has not sponsored any SPV's.

49.32  Revenue recognition

revenue stream of the Company. 

49.33

 The company is not a parent entity to any subsidiary and does not have any associate or JVs to consolidate its financial 
statements.     

49.34

Particulars
 As at   As at  

A. Contingent liabilities

i) Credit enhancement provided by the Company for the loans under 
securitisation arrangements (including cash collaterals)

 1,406.34  762.34 

ii) Demand of income tax FY 2017-18 (AY 2018-19)  -    1.37 

B. Capital commitments

i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 
not provided for

 73.96  17.04 

ii) Undisbursed commitments in respect of the Education loan agreements *  43,159.95  31,609.41

 *The Company has unconditional rights under the loan agreements to cancel these commitments at any time.

49.35

  The Company has not reported any fraud during the current year  ( Previous year  : Nil)

50.  Wilful Defaulter    

51.  Relationship with struck off Companies
 The Company has not entered into any transaction with companies struck off  under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or 

section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 other than those stated below:

 
 Balance outstanding 

 As at   As at  

 Euroedwise Consultz Private Limited  DSA commission agent  -    NA 

52.  Undisclosed Income   

 There are no transactions which are recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

53. Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
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54.
received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on 

Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code 
becomes effective.   

55.

As per our report of even date attached..       

For Nangia & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 002391C/N500069

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Auxilo Finserve Private Limited

Jaspreet Singh Bedi
Partner
Membership No. - 601788

Neeraj Saxena

DIN - 07951705

 Chinnathambi Ilango 
 Director 
 DIN - 03498879 

Harsha Saksena  Deepika Thakur Chauhan 
 Company Secretary 

Mumbai
May 07, 2024

Mumbai
May 07, 2024
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Annexure - I

Particulars  Amount  Amount 
overdue 

 Total  Amount  Amount 
overdue 

 Total 

 (a)   Debentures : Secured  24,134.51  -    24,134.51  28,218.66  -    28,218.66 

                                  Unsecured  -    -    -    -    -    -   

   (other than falling within the meaning 
of public deposits)

 (b) Deferred credits  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 (c) Term loans  1,98,062.35  -    1,98,062.35  1,08,034.00  -    1,08,034.00 

 (d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 (e) Commercial paper  -    -    -    1,490.63  -    1,490.63 

 (f) Public deposits  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 (h)  Other loans (Borrowings)  12,322.55  -    12,322.55  8,249.41  -    8,249.41 

 (a) In the form of Unsecured debentures  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 (b)    In the form of partly secured 
debentures i.e. debentures where 
there is a shortfall in the value of 
security

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 (b)    Other public deposits  -    -    -    -    -    -   

including bills receivables [other than 

 (a)   Secured  26,015.10  -    26,015.10  28,654.03  -    28,654.03 

 (b)  Unsecured  2,61,830.58  -    2,61,830.58  1,40,397.28  -    1,40,397.28 

hire and other assets counting towards 
AFC activities

   

 (i)   Lease assets including lease rentals 
under sundry debtors:

   

        (a)   Financial lease  -    -    -    -    -    -   

  (b)  Operating lease  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 (ii)   Stock on hire including hire charges 
under sundry debtors:

        (a)  Assets on hire  -    -    -    -    -    -   

  (b)  Repossessed assets   -    -    -    -    -    -   
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Particulars  Amount  Amount 
overdue 

 Total  Amount  Amount 
overdue 

 Total 

 (iii)   Other loans counting towards AFC 
activities

 -    -   

        (a)    Loans where assets have been 
repossessed

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

  (b)  Loans other than (a) above  -    -    -    -    -    -   

   

   

 1.  Quoted    

  (i)  Shares : (a)  Equity  -    -    -    -    -    -   

                              (b)  Preference  -    -    -    -    -    -   

       (ii)  Debentures and bonds  -    -    -    -    -    -   

       (iii)  Units of mutual funds  -    -    -    -    -    -   

  (iv)  Government securities  -    -    -    -    -    -   

  (v)  Others (please specify)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 2.  Unquoted  -   

  (i)  Shares :  (a)  Equity  -    -    -    -    -    -   

     (b)  Preference  -    -    -    -    -    -   

       (ii)  Debentures and bonds  -    -    -    -    -    -   

  (iii)  Units of mutual funds  -    -    -    -    -    -   

  (iv)  Government securities  -    -    -    -    -    -   

  (v)   Others (please specify)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 1.  Quoted

  (i)  Shares :  (a)  Equity  -    -    -    -    -    -   

     (b)  Preference  -    -    -    -    -    -   

  (ii)   Debentures and bonds  -    -    -    -    -    -   

  (iii)  Units of mutual funds  -    -    -    -    -    -   

  (iv)  Government securities  -    -    -    -    -    -   

  (v)   Others (please specify)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 2.  Unquoted

  (i)  Shares : (a)  Equity  -    -    -    -    -    -   

                              (b)  Preference  -    -    -    -    -    -   

  (ii)  Debentures and bonds  -    -    -    -    -    -   

  (iii) Units of mutual funds  -    -    -    -    -    -   

  (iv) Government securities  -    -    -    -    -    -   

  (v)  Others (please specify)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Category
 Secured  Unsecured   Total  Secured  Unsecured   Total 

1.  Related Parties       

 (a)  Subsidiaries  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 (b)  Companies in the same group  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 (c)  Other related parties  -    39.08  39.08  -    -    -   

2.  Other than related parties  24,669.77 2,61,230.13  2,85,899.90  27,491.00  1,40,163.94  1,67,654.93 

 Total  24,669.77  2,85,938.98 
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Category

 Market Value 

NAV 

 Book Value  Total  Market Value 

NAV 

 Book Value  Total 

1.  Related Parties       

 (a)  Subsidiaries   -    -    -    -    -    -   

 (b)  Companies in the same group  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 (c)  Other related parties  -    -    -    -    -    -   

2.  Other than related parties   -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Total  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Particulars

(i)  Gross non- performing assets

 (a)  Related parties  -    -   

 (b)  Other than related parties  2,507.79  2,791.88 

(ii)  Net non- performing assets

 (a)  Related parties  -    -   

 (b)  Other than related parties  1,427.97  1,985.65 

(iii)   Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt








